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Chairman Statement

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Allan International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group’s sales turnover
decreased by 19.6% to HK$1,565.3 million (2015: HK$1,946.0
million). It had been an extremely difficult and challenging year for the
Group. The Group recorded the most severe drop in revenue in the
Group’s history. Sales orders had been slow and unpredictable as
the demands from all markets remained weak. Order deferrals and
cancellations have become more pronounced and we had to stay
vigilant and closely monitor our inventory. Manufacturing in the PRC
continued to face increase in labour costs and operating costs. The
Group had managed to apply stringent cost control measures and
efficiency enhancements to mitigate the negative effect of the drop in
sales and rising costs.

On 13 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to disposal of a property,
namely, all that 12th Floor of Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067
King’s Road, Hong Kong at a cash consideration of HK$179.0
million. In addition, pursuant to the agreement, upon completion
of the transaction, the Group continues to occupy the property by
entering into a tenancy agreement with the Purchaser in respect
of the Property for three years commencing from the date of
completion, 3 March 2016. This sale and leaseback arrangement
resulted in a gain of HK$110.8 million and a deferred income of
HK$56.2 million at 31 March 2016.
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Chairman Statement

For the year ended 31 March 2016 the consolidated net profit
increased by 92.5% to HK$135.7 million (2015: HK$70.5 million).
Basic earnings per share of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2016 was HK40.4 cents (2015: HK21.0 cents). The Board
of Directors has resolved to recommend at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting the payment of a final dividend of HK5.5 cents
(2015: HK7.5 cents) and a special dividend of HK28.0 cents (2015:
nil) per share for the year ended 31 March 2016. Together with the
interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per share paid in January this year,
the total dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 will be HK35.0
cents per share (2015: HK10.0 cents).

We are fully aware of the uncertainties and challenges lying ahead.
The full impact of the withdrawal of the United Kingdom from the
European Union is yet to be seen. We will stay alert to market
turbulences and closely monitor the longer term effect on the global
markets. With our prudent and pragmatic business approach,
financial strength and commitment to excel, we will strive on and
tread cautiously to ride through the current and coming difficulties
and challenges.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere appreciation to our employees, shareholders
and business associates for their continual contribution and support
throughout the year.

Cheung Lun
Chairman
Hong Kong
27 June 2016
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Financial Highlights HBRE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+—-HLEFE

2016 2015 Change
—E-RE —E-AF b5y

HK$’000 HK$ 000 %
FET FET

Revenue EER 1,565,325 1,946,003 -20%

Gross Profit EAH 188,633 221,348 -15%
Gross Profit % FE A =E 12.1% 11.4%

Net Profit 40 A 135,656 70,480 +92%
Net Profit% Ay 8.7% 3.6%

HK cents HK cents %

Earnings Per Share STkl 40.4 21.0 +92%
Dividend Per Share — Interim A B — 1.5 25
Dividend Per Share — Final R B — R Ef 5.5 7.5
Dividend Per Share — Special HFREE A 28.0 =

Dividend Per Share - Total TR B — 4258 35.0 10.0 +250%

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2016 2015 Change
Notes —E-XE C—E—RHF o
B it Day Day Day
x S S
Inventory Turnover Days FEREXY 1 24 22 +2
Trade Receivables and Bills EWE ZEF K
Receivable Turnover Days ERE R AERY e 70 75 -5
Trade Payables Turnover Days ENESERFBEXE 3 53 56 -3
Gearing Ratio BEBABGELE 4 4.9% 7.3% -2.4 PointsZ
Return on Equity PR B #E 5 [E] ¥ K ) 12.1% 6.6% +5.5 Points®h
Notes: Brat -
*7 Inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the opening and 1T BFEAESXREBEERBYVILRBERETEETEH
closing inventory divided by the cost of sales and multiplied by the HERAHERARBRNEFRE

number of days for the year
*2 Trade receivables and bills receivable turnover days is equal to trade 2 BIREBERRERZEHREASXBESN

receivables and bills receivable divided by the revenue and multiplied BORWERRERZERIAEEEHE
by the number of days for the year A2 F R E

*3  Trade payables turnover days is equal to trade payables divided by B ENESZEFBEXREEERENE SR
the cost of sales and multiplied by the number of days for the year KBRS E R AR BRI 2 FRE

*4  Gearing Ratio is equal to the totol borrowings divided by the equity Y BAEAGBLERNBEEEQTERARERE

*5  Return on Equity is equal to the net profit for the year divided by the 5 PR RS B R R AR E R AN FE A4 F bR DA R
average of the opening and closing equity ] B2 HA R A 3R i 2 19 88

6 Allan International Holdings Limited ZE R FR @A R A 7



Management Discussion
and Analysis

Business Review

The Group is engaged in manufacturing of a wide range of
household electrical appliances.

For the year ended 31 March 2016 had been an extremely difficult
and challenging year for the Group. Demands for all markets
remained weak and competition in the household electrical
appliance industry was fiercer than ever. The downturn in the sales
turnover was the most severe in the Group’s history. Order visibility
was getting shorter as customers seek to reduce their inventory
carrying risks.

During the year under review, sales turnover decreased by 19.6%
to HK$1,565.3 million. Sales turnover to Europe decreased by
17.8% to HK$812.4 million representing 51.9% of the Group’s sales
turnover. Sales turnover to Asia decreased by 15.4% to HK$394.8
million representing 25.2% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales
turnover to America decreased by 23.1% to HK$311.2 million
representing 19.9% of the Group’s sales turnover. Sales turnover to
other regions decreased by 45.8% to HK$46.9 million representing
3.0% of the Group’s sales turnover.

Gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2016 decreased by 14.8%
to HK$188.6 million. Gross profit margin increased from 11.4%
to 12.1%. The improvement in gross profit margin was mainly
attributed to the stabilized raw material costs which counteracted to
the increase in labour costs and operating costs in the PRC.

The Group continued to apply stringent control on all costs and
expenses. Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 12.9%
to HK$30.1 million. As a percentage to sales turnover, selling
and distribution expenses increased slightly from 1.8% to 1.9%
compared to last year. Administration expenses decreased by
10.1% to HK$129.5 million. As a percentage to sales turnover,
administration expenses increased from 7.4% to 8.3% compared to
last year.
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

On 13 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party to disposal of a property,
namely, all that 12th Floor of Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067
King’s Road, Hong Kong at a cash consideration of HK$179.0
million. In addition, pursuant to the agreement, upon completion
of the transaction, the Group continues to occupy the property by
entering into a tenancy agreement with the Purchaser in respect
of the Property for three years commencing from the date of
completion, 3 March 2016. This sale and leaseback arrangement
resulted in a gain of HK$110.8 million and a deferred income of
HK$56.2 million at 31 March 2016.

The investment property located in Wanchai, Hong Kong was
revaluated at HK$242.0 million at 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$248.0
million) giving rise to a decrease in fair value of HK$6.0 million in the
income statement.

Net Profit for the year increased by 92.5% to HK$135.7 million
(2015: HK$70.5 million). Net profit margin increased from 3.6% to
8.7% compared to last year.

Prospects

Going forward, we expect 2016/17 would be yet another difficult
year. Business environment would be even more turbulent and
challenging. Consumer sentiments and demand would remain weak
as economic and political conditions are uncertain. The household
electrical appliances industry would remain extremely competitive.
As such, the pressure on the product selling prices would still be
very severe. Material costs are expected to be largely stable while
labour costs and operating costs in PRC would continue to rise,
although at a slower pace than before. We would aim to expand
through both customer base and product categories. We would
invest in our engineering and R&D capabilities to offer total project
management with unique and innovative product platforms to
our customers. We would strive to stay slim and efficient through
automation, manpower streamlining and process improvements.
Stringent cost and expense control, productivity efficiency
improvements, persistence in quality products and engineering and
R&D capabilities would continue to be our focus and top priorities.
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

With our prudent and pragmatic business approach, financial
strength and commitment to excel, we will strive on and tread
cautiously to ride through the current and coming difficulties and
challenges.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had total assets of HK$1,694.2
million (2015: HK$1,643.8 million) which was financed by current
liabilities of HK$424.1 million (2015: HK$503.8 million), long-term
liabilities and deferred income and taxation of HK$96.3 million (2015:
HK$64.6 million) and shareholders’ equity of HK$1,173.8 million
(2015: HK$1,075.5 million).

The Group continued to maintain a strong balance sheet and a
healthy liquidity position. As at 31 March 2016, the Group held
HK$730.6 million (2015: HK$405.6 million) in cash and bank
deposits. They were mainly placed in Renminbi and US dollar
short term deposits, except for temporary balances held in other
currencies as required pending specific payments. For the year
ended 31 March 2016, the Group generated net cash inflow from
operating activities of HK$208.5 million (2015: outflow of HK$32.7
million). As at the same date, total borrowings were HK$57.2
million (2015: HK$78.1 million) and the gearing ratio (ratio of total
borrowings to shareholders’ equity) was 4.9% (2015: 7.3%).

We continue to apply stringent control over the working capital
cycle. The inventory balance as at 31 March 2016 decreased
from HK$103.7 million to HK$74.6 million. Inventory turnover
increased from 22 days to 24 days compared to last year. The trade
receivables balance as at 31 March 2016 decreased from HK$400.0
million to HK$300.7 million. Trade receivables turnover improved
from 75 days to 70 days. The trade payables balance as at 31
March 2016 decreased from HK$262.6 million to HK$200.7 million.
Trade payables turnover decreased from 56 days to 53 days.
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

Funding for day-to-day operational working capital and capital
expenditures are to be serviced by internal cash flow and available
banking facilities. For the year ended 31 March 2016, the group
invested HK$16 million (2015: HK$35 million) in plant and machinery,
moulds and tools, equipment, computer systems and other tangible
assets for expansion and upgrade to our manufacturing facilities.
The Group’s capital expenditures were funded by internal resources
and bank loans. The capital expenditure budget for 2016/17 is
approximately HK$71.4 million. With a healthy financial position and
available banking facilities, the Group is able to provide sufficient
financial resources for our current commitments, working capital
requirements, further expansions of the Group’s business operations
and future investment opportunities, as and when required.

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Renminbis and Euros. Currently the Group does not implement
hedging activity to hedge against foreign currency exposure.
However, we will closely monitor foreign currency exposure and
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March, 2016, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2016, the Group employed approximately 4,000
employees (2015: 4,800). The majority of our employees work
in the PRC. The Group remunerated our employees based on
their performances, experiences and prevailing market rates while
performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis. Share
options may also be granted to employees based on individual
performance and attainment of certain set targets.

10 Allan International Holdings Limited T2 faEIFEEE AR A 7
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors

Cheung Lun, aged 88, is the founder and Chairman of the
Group. He has more than 50 years of management and technical
experience in the industry. He is responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall strategic planning and development.

Mr. Cheung Lun is the father of Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the Managing
Director, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, an Executive Director, Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director, Mr. Cheung Shu
Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation and Mr. Cheung Shu
Sang, William, the Director of Research and Development; and also
the uncle of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the Group.

Mr. Cheung is a Director of a majority of the subsidiaries of the
Company. He is also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and
Allan Investment Company Limited, controlling shareholders of
the Company. As at 31 March 2016, according to the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), Mr. Cheung is the
settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which
include other family members other than spouse) which directly and
indirectly had interest in 149,049,960 shares. Details of his interests
are set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this
report.

Cheung Shu Wan, aged 55, is the Managing Director of the Group
and joined the Group in 1983. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of
Science from the University of London, England. He is responsible
for the sales & marketing, research & development and engineering
functions of the Group. He also assists the Chairman in corporate
strategic planning and development.

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun, the Chairman of
the Group; brother of Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, an Executive
Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director, Mr.
Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation and
Mr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, the Director of Research and
Development; and also the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive
Director of the Group.

EEREREEAE

HITES

R RE N+ B BAKEEF A
AN RREEEXRACDERBA+F2ER
KB - WEBHE AR E 2 EERE
MBI M ERIER -

RREEAEEESQLEREREE £E
WITEFREERE BITESFREBH L

BN 81 48 Ba R A6t & o A Mt 5 R P B AR BEOR
WAELEEZRXH TRATEFRBEAEEZM
Qo

REEBEARARIFNHBARZES #
IR AN AR Z ¥ %A A Unison Associates
Limited REmIEEBRAFZEE R _F
—NF=ZA=1+—8 BEZBLFRHEKHE
3521& B0 AR B FT il & 52 - SR SEER The
Cheung Lun Family Trustz Bf E#& F A (H %
mABRRKEREMKE (BEERIN )EEX
M B AR T]149,049,9600% B% 15 - E D
HENAFRESREETHRABRRMD
ARG  EREFzZRERAR] —ER-

RER REA AR AASEEFAL
B R —AN=ZFNMAREER HHEELE
MAARERELTBEMU-KEAEAEEZE
ERmGHRE ARAAEARTERZE
5 IR BY £ B E AR BRI R & M BR
B& 1A

FEREERKBEEIRRB/AEZIAT &
ERTEFTRBE XL WITEFREHK
T PR BIRT 4R BL oR A B O A AR O e R B
RE R ASLAENILE  MAMITERRE
TEZESR-

Annual Report 2015/2016 —E— A& ZE=-F— A FEFHK

11



Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueg)

Mr. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. He is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2016, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Mr. Cheung had
personal interest in 49,675,335 Shares and The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Cheung and other family
members other than spouse) directly and indirectly had interest
in 149,049,960 Shares. Details of his interests are set out in the
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this report.

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, aged 58, is the Executive Director of
the Group and joined the Group in 1984. She obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science from Kingston Polytechnic, England. She is in
charge of the overall manufacturing operations of the Group.

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun,
the Chairman of the Group; sister of Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the
Managing Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive
Director, Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost
Innovation and Mr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, the Director of
Research and Development; and also the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui,
an Executive Director of the Group.

Ms. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. She is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2016, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Ms. Cheung had
personal interest in 600,000 shares and The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Cheung and other family
members other than spouse) directly and indirectly had interest
in 149,049,960 Shares. Details of her interests are set out in the
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this report.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueg)

Cheung Lai See, Sophie, aged 53, is the Executive Director of
the Group and joined the Group in 1995. She obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science from the University of London, England and a
master degree in Business Management from the City University,
England. She is responsible for the financial and administration
functions of the Group.

Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun,
the Chairman of the Group; sister of Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the
Managing Director, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, an Executive
Director, Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost
Innovation and Mr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, the Director of
Research and Development; and also the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui,
Executive Director of the Group.

Ms. Cheung is a Director of all subsidiaries of the Company. She is
also a Director of Unison Associates Limited and Allan Investment
Company Limited, controlling shareholders of the Company. As
at 31 March 2016, according to the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Ms. Cheung had
personal interest in 1,258,000 shares and The Cheung Lun Family
Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Cheung and other family
members other than spouse) directly and indirectly had interest in
149,049,960 shares of the Company. Details of her interests are
set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this
report.

Cheung Pui, aged 68, is the Executive Director of the Group and
joined the Group in 1963. He has over 50 years of experience in the
plastic injection moulding industry. He is responsible for all technical
aspects of plastic injection moulding activities of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors (continueg)

Mr. Cheung Pui is the nephew of Mr. Cheung Lun, the Chairman
of the Group, he is also the cousin of Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the
Managing Director, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, an Executive
Director, and Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director,
Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation
and Mr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, the Director of Research and
Development of the Group.

Mr. Cheung is a Director of Allan Electric Mfg. Limited, Allan
International Limited, Allan Plastic Mfg. Limited, Allan Toys
Manufacturing Limited, Ever Sources Investment Limited, Ngai
Shing (Far East) Plastic & Metalwares Factory Ltd., Warran Electric
Manufacturing Limited, all being subsidiaries of the Company. He
is also a director and a shareholder of Allan Investment Co. Ltd., a
Controlling Shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules), holding 11 percent of its entire issued share capital. As at 31
March 2016, according to the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, Mr. Cheung had personal
interest in 1,000,000 shares of the Company. Details of his interests
are set out in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of this
report.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan How Chun, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in September 2004. She has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and administration. She holds a
Bachelor degree in Commerce and a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Windsor in Canada and a PhD
degree in Management from the Hong Kong Baptist University.

Lai Ah Ming, Leon, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 1995. He is a solicitor majoring
in commercial and property works.

Lo Chung Mau, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director in November 1997. Professor Lo is a surgeon and
is currently the Chin Lan Hong Professor and Head of Department of
Surgery of the University of Hong Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management

Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, aged 56, is the Director of Cost
Innovation and joined the Group in 1983. He obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science from the University of Wales, England. He is
responsible for the purchasing and sourcing functions of the Group.

Mr. Cheung Shu Chun, Simon is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun, the
Chairman of the Group; brother of Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the
Managing Director, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, an Executive
Director and Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director
and Mr. Cheung Shu Sang, William, the Director of Research and
Development; and also the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive
Director of the Group.

Mr. Cheung is a director of Allan Electric Mfg. Limited, Allan
International Limited, Allan Plastic Mfg. Limited, Allan Toys
Manufacturing Limited, Artreal Manufactory Limited, Ever Sources
Investment Limited, Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic & Metalwares
Factory Ltd., Warran Electric Manufacturing Limited, all being
subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of Allan
Investment Co. Ltd., a Controlling Shareholder of the Company (as
defined in the Listing Rules). Mr. Cheung is one of the beneficiaries
of The Cheung Lun Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which include
Mr. Cheung and other family members other than spouse) which
directly and indirectly has interest in 149,049,960 shares.

Cheung Shu Sang, William, aged 51, is the Director of Research
and Development and joined the Group in 1994. He holds a BSc
degree in Computing Science and a MSc degree in Management
Science, both at Imperial College London. He also holds a PhD
degree in Automation from the University of Bristol, and is a
member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. He is in charge
of product research and development, and also management of
intellectual property/patent application.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continuea)

Mr. Cheung Shu Sang, William is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun,
the Chairman of the Group; brother of Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, the
Managing Director, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, an Executive
Director, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, an Executive Director and Mr.
Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, the Director of Cost Innovation; and also
the cousin of Mr. Cheung Pui, an Executive Director of the Group.

Mr. Cheung is a Director of Allan Toys Manufacturing Limited
and Total Profits Limited, all being subsidiaries of the Company.
He is also a director of Allan Investment Co. Ltd., a Controlling
Shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules). Mr.
Cheung has personal interest in 900,000 shares and The Cheung
Lun Family Trust (the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Cheung and
other family members other than spouse) directly and indirectly has
interest in 149,049,960 shares.

Chung Chi Yin, aged 53, is the Director of Engineering and joined
the Group in 1990. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science in
Product Design and Technology from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He is responsible for the product development of the Group.

Kwok Ka Lee, Carrie, aged 48, is the Director of Manufacturing
and joined the Group in 1990. She obtained a degree in Bachelor
of Business (Transport and Logistics Management) from Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology. She is responsible for the
manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Leung Mun Keung, aged 57, is the Director of Manufacturing. He
joined the Group in 1991 and has over 30 years of experience in
manufacturing of electrical home appliances. He is responsible for
the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continued)

Li Wai Ho, aged 52, is the Director of Sales and Marketing
and joined the Group in 2012. He possesses a master degree
in management from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a
bachelor degree in engineering from Manchester University in United
Kingdom. He has over 17 years of experience in various functions in
Multinational Corporation. He is responsible for sales and marketing
function of the Group.

Li Wing Kong, aged 56, is the Director of Quality Assurance and
joined the Group in 2013. He obtained Higher Diploma of Electrical
Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic. He is responsible for the
Quality Assurance of the Group.

Tsang Wing Tong, Michelle, aged 49, is the Director of
Manufacturing and joined the Group in 1987. She is responsible for
the manufacturing management and control function of the Group.

Tsui Wing Keung, aged 60, is the Moulds and Tools Manager of
the Group and joined the Group in 1992. He has over 20 years of
experience in plastic injection mould making. He is responsible for
the management of the mould making operation for plastic injection
moulds.

Wong Lai Yung, aged 54, is the Company Secretary and Finance
and Account Manager of the Group and joined the Group in 2006.
She holds a master degree of Business Administration and a master
degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University of Hong
Kong. She also obtained her master degree in Economics from
Jinan University, PRC. Ms. Wong is currently a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified Tax Adviser
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. She is responsible for the
Company’s secretarial duties and financial and accounting aspects
of the Group.

Wong Mei Lin, aged 53, is the Director of Administration and
Personnel and joined the Group in 2000. She obtained a Higher
Certificate in Company Secretaryship and Administration from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. She is responsible for the human
resources and administration management of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, including an
analysis using financial key performance indicators, the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, important events
affecting the Group and an indication of likely future development
of the Group’s business can be found in “Chairman Statement” set
out on Pages 4 to 5, “Management Discussion and Analysis” set
out on pages 7 to 10, “Financial Highlights” set out on page 6 and
“Financial Risk Management objectives and policies” (Note 6b) set
out on pages 80 to 87 of this annual report.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The success of the Group depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise customers, suppliers, employees and
shareholders.

Customers
The Group’s major customers are companies selling household
electrical appliances under well-known brand names. The Group
maintains long-term and good relationship with its customers. The
Group strives to provide excellent service and quality products to our
customers.

Suppliers

Supply chain is a critical aspect of our operations. The Group
maintains long-term and good relationship with its suppliers. The
Group selects its suppliers based on assessment criteria including,
among others, cost, quality, experience, capability, capacity,
sustainability and ethical behavior. The Group requires all suppliers
to comply with relevant manufacturing and safety standards. The
Group has communicated to all the suppliers of the Group’s strict
compliance to anti-bribery which is also required to be observed by
all suppliers.
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Directors’ Report

Relationship with Stakeholders (continueq)

Employees

Employees are one of the most valuable assets of the Group. The
Group provides competitive remuneration package together with
safe and harmonious workplace. In-house and external trainings and
seminars are provided to employee for their business and personal
development. Recreational activities are organized periodically and
employees are encouraged to participate in volunteer work. The
Group has been nominated and awarded Caring Company since
2007.

Shareholders

The Group endeavors to maximize the return to its shareholders. The
Group strives to achieve profit growth and stable dividend payouts
taking into account the business development needs and financial
health of the Group.

Environmental Policies

The Group recognizes the importance of achieving environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to comply with the relevant
environmental standards and policies related to its business
operations in the PRC and Hong Kong. The manufacturing sites in
the PRC and our head office in Hong Kong are certified with the
ISO 14001:2004 standard for environmental management system.
The Group incorporates the Reduce, Reuse and Recycle principle
and implements environmental-friendly measures in operations and
workplaces to achieve efficient use of resources, waste reduction
and energy saving.

Compliance with laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2016, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and operations
of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

During the year, none of the Directors was interested in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.
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Directors’ Report

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 and
the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 45.

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per share amounting to
HK$5,032,000 in aggregate was paid to the ordinary shareholders
during the year. The directors now recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK5.5 cents and a special dividend of HK28.0 cents
per ordinary share in respect of the current year to the ordinary
shareholders on the register of members on 26 August 2016,
amounting to HK$112,370,000 in aggregate.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest suppliers and customers are as follows:
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At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has
an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 136 of the
annual report.
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Directors’ Report

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of
Securities of the Company

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

In addition to the retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(@ itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share
premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to shareholders at 31 March 2016 comprised the
retained profit of HK$88,769,000 (2015: HK$92,131,000).

Investment Properties

Details of the movement of investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$16 million on the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment principally to expand
and upgrade its manufacturing facilities. Details of these and other
movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Cheung Lun

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
Mr. Cheung Pui

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chan How Chun

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Cheung
Pui and Mr. Lai Ah Ming Leon shall retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each director (except for the Chairman of the
Board and/or the Managing Director) is the period up to his/her
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Report EEERE

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ EERFETHRAEREKRRG
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, #HER?YD BEEZZEZRA
Underlying Shares and Debentures B

At 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the directors RZEBE-—ARF=ZA=+—HB ARAEEK
and chief executives and their associates in the shares, underlying FETHAEREBEALTRAR R K EE
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated ENEIMEG  BRERG REREE PR
corporations, as recorded in register maintained by the Company mEARRERARRIRES KB EKD
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the FEI2GBEGFT 2 ERMARNERIORE
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock FIRBE EMBTAEZESETESFRHREST

Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions Bz EREMERRNBREBHRAERZAN
by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows: BRAR (TEERAT]) MERSORBIAT -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company ARAFABREEIIOGETZEEBR
Number of ordinary shares held Approximate %
FECRTEEREA of the issued
Personal Other share capital
Name Capacity interest interest Total  of the Company
ERH
EBTRHZ
#E &t HAER Hi s ay BHEIL
Mr. Cheung Lun Founder of discretionary trust - 149,049,960 149,049,960 44.44%
RRxE PRETIKUA (Note)
(Wit
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan Beneficial Owner 49,675,335
RERAE ERBEAA
Beneficiary of trust 149,049,960 198,725,295 59.24%
EEZHEA (Notg)
(Wit
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie Beneficial Owner 600,000
REY LT ERBEA
Beneficiary of trust 149,049,960 149,649,960 44.61%
ERAZEA (Note)
(i)
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’

Interests and Short Positions in Shares,

Underlying Shares and Debentures

(Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

Name

##

Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
REHLL

Mr. Cheung Pui
RERE

Note:

Capacity

&t

Beneficial Owner
ERBEEA
Beneficiary of trust

ERXHEA

Beneficial Owner

ExBAA

EEEHE

EERFTETHRAERKRAD
MR - EREE 2B RK

B (&)

AARBREECIOEBTZEER (&)

Number of ordinary shares held Approximate %
FEERTEBRYA of the issued
Personal Other share capital
interest interest Total  of the Company
ERAH
BETRA L
AARS H s By R
1,258,000

149,049,960 150,307,960 44.81%

(Notg)

(Wit
1,000,000 - 1,000,000 0.30%

Hitst :

The references to 149,049,960 shares relate to the same block of shares

in the Company, of which 134,821,960 shares are held by Allan Investment
Co. Limited (“AICL”"), 7,658,000 shares are held by Commence Investment
Limited (“CIL”) and 6,570,000 shares are held by Unison Associates Limited
(“UAL”"). AICL and CIL are owned as to 89.0% and 100% respectively
by UAL. Mr. Cheung Lun is the settlor of The Cheung Lun Family Trust
(“Trust”). Credit Suisse Trust Limited as trustee of the Trust holds 100% of
the shareholding of UAL and the discretionary beneficiaries of the Trust are,

among others, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms.

Cheung Lai See, Sophie.
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives,
nor their associates, of the Company had, as at 31 March 2016,
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the scheme.
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Directors’ Report

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

Other than the share option scheme set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Appointment of Independent
Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities
on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Conan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with
Fair Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Fair Pacific Limited
granted to Conan a tenancy in respect of certain land in Lilin Village,
Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial Development Zone, Huizhou City, the
PRC at a monthly rent of HK$82,000. The tenancy agreement
was for a term of three years commenced from 1 April 2010 and
renewable up to year 2028 on every 5 years. The total amount of
rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of this agreement was
HK$984,000.
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance (continueq)

Allan Plastics Mfg., Limited (“APML”"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with Income
Village Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, pursuant to
which Income Village Limited granted to APML a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin Village, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$17,000. The tenancy agreement was for a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2014. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$204,000.

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Karan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
AICL, pursuant to which AICL granted to Karan a tenancy in respect
of certain premises in Lilin Village, Zhongkai Hi-Tech Industrial
Development Zone, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of
HK$75,000. The tenancy agreement was a term of three years
commenced from 1 April 2014. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$900,000.

The above transactions were approved by the independent non-
executive directors and were conducted on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business of the Group and in
accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than disclosed above, no contracts of significance, to which
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Emolument Policy

Salary package for employees are structured by reference to
market conditions, staff’'s experience and individual performance.
Other benefits offered by the Group included medical insurance,
mandatory provident fund scheme, training subsidies, share option
scheme and discretionary bonus.
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Directors’ Report

Emolument Policy (continuea)

The emoluments of the directors and senior management are
recommended by the remuneration committee of the Company
and decided by the Board, with reference to the market rates,
commitment, contribution and their duties, and responsibilities with
the Group. Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in details in
note 9 to the financial statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the directors and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are
set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2016, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of
certain directors and chief executive, the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests and long/short positions in
the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity
BRR &8 514
Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee
EEIN
UAL Held by controlled corporation

Frietlc RERA

Beneficial Owner

BEmlEAA
AICL Beneficial Owner
DmiRE EmlEAA
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Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (continueq)

Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of
the Company (Continued)

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRREMH Lg%

Beneficial Owner
ExnBEAA
Held by controlled corporation

Pzl z AERA

Webb, David Michael

Preferable Situation Assets Limited Beneficial Owner

Note:

The reference to 27,905,000 shares above are held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. Webb, David Michael.
According to a notice filed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, the shareholding
of Preferable Situation Assets Limited in the Company was increased from
26,886,000 shares to 27,905,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$109,000.
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Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 31 to 40.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws/articles of association, or the laws of Bermuda, which

would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 March 2016.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Lun
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 June 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and the sustained development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate, all
code provisions set out in Appendix 14 Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in
the CG Code of the Listing Rules. The Company has, throughout
the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of publication
of the annual report, applied and complied with most of the Code
Provisions save certain deviations from the Code Provisions in
respect of code provisions A.4.1, A4.2, A51, A6.7 and E.1.2
details of which are explained below.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Company (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
made specific enquiry to all directors regarding any non-compliance
with the Model Code during the year under review and they have all
confirmed that they had fully complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

The Board comprises of five Executive Directors, being Mr. Cheung
Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing Director), Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie and Mr.
Cheung Pui; three Independent Non-executive Directors, being Dr.
Chan How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and Professor Lo Chung
Mau. Biographical details, which include relationships among
members of the Board, are provided in the “Directors and Senior
Management” section of the annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continueq)

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long term strategy and monitoring the
implementation thereof

° Approval of interim and year end dividend

° Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports
° Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

° Monitoring the performance of the management

° Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategies
that have been approved.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and additional
meetings or telephone conferences are convened as and when the
Board considers necessary. During the year, four board meetings
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance record in the year are
as follows:

Attendance/

Executive Directors No. of meeting

Mr. Cheung Lun 4/4
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan 4/4
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie 4/4
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 4/4
Mr. Cheung Pui 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chan How Chun 4/4
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 4/4
Professor Lo Chung Mau 4/4
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continueq)

The Company has complied with the Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive directors and one of the
independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related finance management
expertise. Each of the independent non-executive director has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company has arranged for directors and officers liability
insurance to indemnity its directors against liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Board considered that the duties of the Managing Director, Mr.
Cheung Shu Wan (“MD”) were no different from that required of a
chief executive stipulated under the code provision A.2 of the Code.
The management would regard that the term MD will have the same
meaning as the chief executive of the Company.

Mr. Cheung Lun, the Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director,
who is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
Board, and ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed
and where required, resolved by the Board timely and constructively.

The MD of the Board is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to run the Group’s business and day-to-day operation,
and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to the achievement
of its business objectives with the assistance of the executive
directors and senior management.

Annual Report 2015/2016 —E—HFEZ-F—<FEFH{ 33

ERERKRE

EES s

RAAREEF EMHRAIZEI1001)3.10(2)
M3 1AKEBBR D EE MBI IERITE
EREP(BUERNTESEEERE
CEXEERAETIEENBERER A
EeBMNBYIFRTESCRIEEMARANE
SABGZHE MEBYMELFE®ER-
RABREBFBEIIIERNTESTHARES L
MR A EI13MRTE < BLIEIES| -

BN RERX

BREIRER RESKEABERBRET AIGEE
EHREREERARE ZEERREEF

st o
FERITBAR

EFERE EFRERREEL 2 WE
BT A A 2R AT B R TR AR 2 WA
LEER EREREFRLE] —F2
BESARRTTRER -

EZSTRRMEERNTES RAEEE
EEEQURREARERE ULBRES
SRELFBEEM I wmILET BRFRME
ERNABRER-

EZeEFNKERRTRRLEAEER
AEEXBZ2ENBEERE YENTE
ENEREEBHBE T ATAEBRER
HEB BRI 2R



Corporate Governance Report

Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, none of the three independent non-executive directors
of the Company is appointed for a specific term. This constitutes
a deviation from the CG Code. In accordance with the provisions
of the Bye-laws of the Company, any director appointed by the
Board during the year shall retire and submit themselves for re-
election at the first general meeting immediately following his/her
appointment. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not exceeding one-
third, shall retire from office. The directors to retire by rotation shall
be those who have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are similar to those in the CG Code.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting after their appointment, and
every director, including those appointed for a specific term, should
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the chairman and/or
managing director is not subject to retirement by rotation or taken
into account on determining the number of directors to retire. This
constitutes a deviation from the CG Code. As continuation is a key
factor to the successful implementation of any long term business
plans, the Board believes that, the present arrangement is most
beneficial to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Training

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
All directors participate in appropriate continuous professional
development activities by ways of attending training or reading
material relevant to the Company’s business or to the directors’
duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
the Company has provided an update on the latest development
and changes of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and
regulations relating to directors’ duties and responsibilities to each
of Mr. Cheung Lun, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun,
Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie, Mr. Cheung Pui, Dr. Chan
How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon and Professor Lo Chung Mau to
keep themselves update on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director. The Company has received the records of training
from all directors.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are independent non-executive
directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term
of reference, which describes the authority and duties of the
Committee, as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee will meet at least twice each year. During the
year, the Audit Committee met twice considering the annual results
of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 and the
interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30 September
2015, assessing any changes in accounting policies and practices,
major judgmental areas and compliance with applicable legal and
accounting requirements and standards, discussing with the auditor
of the Company on the risk management and internal control
systems.

Details of Committee members and their attendance records are
listed as below:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Lai Ah Ming Leon 2/2
Professor Lo Chung Mau 2/2
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Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 12 March 2012
with written terms of reference as stated in Code B.1.2 of the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee
consists of three members, majority of which are independent non-
executive directors. Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon, being an Independent
Non-executive Director, acts as the chairman. Dr. Chan How Chun,
an Independent Non-executive Director and Ms. Cheung Lai See,
Sophie, an Executive Director, are the Committee Members.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board for the determination of the
remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board for the directors’ fee of non-
executive directors. It takes into account factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies with similar size and trade,
education background and qualification of each director and senior
management, time commitment and responsibilities of directors and
senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting.
Attendance of each individual member was as follows:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon (Chairman) 1/1
Dr. Chan How Chun 11
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 11

Details on the emolument payable to the directors and the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in notes 9 and 29 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Corporate Governance Report

Nomination of Directors

Code Provision A.5.1 stipulates that the Company should establish
a nomination committee. Currently, the Company does not
have a nomination committee. The Board will identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members when necessary. The
Board will give due consideration to the suitability of a candidate
for directorship after taking into account of his/her experience,
qualification and other relevant factors. All candidates must also
meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an independent non-
executive director should also meet the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management; review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to employees
and directors; and review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Company Secretary

Ms. Wong Lai Yung joined the Company since 2006 and was
appointed as the Company Secretary on 20 September 2012. Ms.
Wong is responsible to update and provide advice to the Board in
relation to directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, applicable
laws and regulations, and corporate governance matters. Ms. Wong
has provided her training records to the Company indicating her
compliance with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules. Ms. Wong’s biographical details are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of the annual report.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Corporate Governance Report

Director’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statement

The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (ii) selecting suitable
accounting policies and applying the selected accounting policies
consistently with the support of reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
set out on pages 41 to 42 of this Annual Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as
follows:

Services rendered Fees payable

HK$ 000

Audit services 2,025
Non-audit services

Review of interim results 297

Review of major disposal 385

Taxation services 447

Audit of occupational retirement scheme 24

Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system for the Group
to safeguard the interests of shareholders and the Group as a
whole and to ensure strict compliance with relevant laws, rules and
regulations. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
and reporting to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

Risk Management and Internal Controls
(Continued)

The Group’s risk management includes regular identification and
review of business risks and control measures to mitigate such risks.
The Group’s internal control systems comprises a well established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards.
Areas of responsibilities for each business and functional unit are
clearly defined to ensure effective checks and balances. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorised
use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting records; and
for ensuring the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication. The procedures provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Board carried out an
overview on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. No material risk management
and internal control aspects of any significant problems were noted.
Both the Audit Committee and the Board were satisfied that the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group had
functioned effectively during the year under review. During the
annual review, the audit committee also reviewed the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

Shareholders’ Rights

On the requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company, the Board
may convene a special general meeting to address specific issues
of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of written
notice to the registered office of the Company. The requisition must
state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionist(s).

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders or not less than 100 shareholders may
propose any resolution at the annual general meeting and circulate
to other shareholders written statement with respect to the matter to
be dealt with at the annual general meeting.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continueq)

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
office address at 12/F, Zung Fu Industrial Building, 1067 King's
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and its shareholders.
All Directors and external auditors make an effort to attend the
Annual General Meeting to address shareholders’ queries. The
Company also responds to requests for information and queries
from the shareholders and investors and welcomes the views of
shareholders on matter affecting the Group and encourages them
to attend shareholders’ meeting to communicate any concerns they
might have with the Board.

Code Provision A.6.7 stipulates that, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.

Two independent non-executive directors, Dr. Chan How Chun and
Professor Lo Chung Mau, did not attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 19 August 2015 due to other business
engagements.

Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the Board
and the chairman of the Audit Committee should attend the annual
general meeting. Both the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman
of the Audit Committee had not attended the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 19 August 2015. The Chairmen
will endeavour to attend all future annual general meetings of the
Company unless unexpected or special circumstances prevent them
from doing so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ALLAN INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
TRERERERRAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Allan
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 135,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2016

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

(Loss) gain from changes in fair value
of investment properties

Gain on sale and
leaseback arrangement

Finance costs on bank loans

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

Other comprehensive expense
Item that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on
translating foreign operations
Fair value (loss) gain
on available-for-sale investments
Reclassified to profit or loss upon
disposal of available-for-sale
investments
Translation reserve released upon
dissolution of a foreign operation

Other comprehensive expense
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to owners of
the Company

Earnings per share
Basic

B

E
5 & RN

EH

H W as

H fth 2 7] K% &5 18

HE R IR

TR A

REMEZ A FEES
FEZH (B18E) &7
HE M E& LR
PREAZ&F

PR ARRITER

B 35 Bl st A
PR BRI 3

REEA DK AT
BB ANZ A

Hih2mHBX:
HEGECEN » HE»EH :

BMEBINEBREL 2
EHER
AfHHEREZ
RFE (BR) &
HEAHEEREN L ER
BEANEH O BEERRK

BREBIEBRBEREL R

AEEEMEEFX

ARBAIDRERNREAALZ

FEREKEAE
SREAF
A

Annual Report 2015/2016 —Z—H

=—F
2=

Notes

Kt

7

10

16

11

12

18

15

mEBEER
Hfth 2wk mR

NEZA=T—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,565,325 1,946,003
(1,376,692) (1,724,655)
188,633 221,348
13,420 10,566
(3,211) 4,063
(30,148) (34,599)
(129,511) (144,017)
(6,000) 30,000
110,788 -
(959) (1,428)
143,012 85,933
(7,356) (15,453)
135,656 70,480
(6,408) (613)
(727) 143

47 (507)

- (5,993)

(7,088) (6,970)
128,568 63,510
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March 2016

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Club debentures

Available-for-sale investments

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables and bills receivable
Other receivables
Mould deposits paid
Prepaid lease payments
Available-for-sale investments
Tax recoverable
Short-term deposits
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Deferred income
Mould deposits received
Tax liabilities
Secured bank loans
— due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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Notes

Kt

16
17
18
19
20

21

22
23
238

18
20

24
24

25

11

26

2016 2015
—E—XRF = o3l—as
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
242,000 248,000
229,057 300,312
24,833 26,394
13,866 13,866
16,031 13,563
3,495 3,635
108 2,967
529,390 608,737
74,589 103,724
300,729 400,033
29,918 99,244
13,012 16,457
704 716
3,538 1,617
11,695 7,692
305,732 197,307
424,879 208,304
1,164,796 1,035,094
200,717 262,593
133,242 140,540
19,252 =
26,919 33,912
33,261 40,294
10,672 26,441
424,063 503,780
740,733 531,314
1,270,123 1,140,051




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2016

e PR R

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EET IR
Deferred income PEIE U A
Secured bank loans BHEMBITER

— due after one year ——F1&EIH

Net assets BEFE

Capital and reserves EAR RS
Share capital &N
Reserves E

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 135 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27
June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
REY
Director

EF

RZE—R"F=A=+—H
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hE
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kt FETT FET
27 12,855 12,939
11 36,901 -
26 46,533 51,657
96,289 64,596
1,173,834 1,075,455
28 33,543 33,543
1,140,291 1,041,912
1,173,834 1,075,455

HNFIBEEI1BAZFEMBHREEE R
“E-RERNATLHEEESTSHER
RERE WH NIEFAERRE:

Cheung Lai See, Sophie
R HT
Director

EBEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity #RaERm & EHR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_T—XRF=ZA=1+—HIFE

Capital  Investment

Share Share  redemption  revaluation  Translation Dividend Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
RAEE RE
BA B EE " EftRE EXRE REFE REEH BE

HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS$000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET THET TET TET TET TET

At 1 April 2014 RZZ-MENA—A 33,543 109,884 793 557 40,079 26,835 835,475 1,047,166
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - 70,480 70,480
Exchange differences on BEBINEBR
translating foreign operations ERES - - - - (613) - - (613)
Net gain on revaluation of avallable-for- At & 1% &
sale investments EfRRAFE - - - 143 - - - 143
Cumulative gain reclassified to profit &R HEREH
or loss on sale of avallable-for-sale ZHBHERHES
investments - - - (507) - - - (507)
Release of translation reserve on BRI T R ol B
dissolution of a foreign operation ELGRE = = = - (5,993) - - (5,993)
Other comprehensive expense AEEEMEE
for the year X i - - - (364) (6,606) - - (6,970)
Total comprehensive (expense) income  AFEFE2ME (X iH)
for the year etk - - - (364) (6,606) - 70,480 63,510
Dividend proposed for 2015 (note 14)  #HEZH-ZT—REKRE
(BaE14) - - - - - 25,157 (25,157) =
Dividends recognised as distriution BREFRZRE
(note 14) (Wi314) = = - - - (26,835) (8,386) (35,221)
At31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015~ R-E—HE=F=+-A
k=% ﬁ@ﬂ B 33,543 109,884 793 193 33,473 25,157 872,412 1,075,455
Profit for the year REERT - - - - - - 135,656 135,656
Exchange differences on translating BEBINERR
foreign operations ERESR - = - - (6,408) - - (6,408)
Net loss on revaluation of avallable-for- A1 & 1% &
sale investments EfBBRFE - - - (727) - - - (727)
Cumulative loss reclassified to profit HETHRHEREN
or loss on sale of avallable-for-sale #Eﬁﬁi%ﬁ AE3
investments T,E - - - 47 - - - 47
Other comprehensive expense AEEEMEARML
for the year - - - (680) (6,408) - - (7,088)
Total comprehensive (expense) income  AFEFE2ME (X iH)
for the year e - - - (680) (6,408) - 135,656 128,568
Dividend proposed for 2016 (note 14)  #HEE-ZT—~ERE
(BE14) - - - - - 18,449 (18,449) =
Special dividend proposed for 2016 BR-Z—EHIRE
(note 14) (WizE14) = = - - - 93,921 ©@3921) -
Dividends recognised as distrioution BREDRZRE
(note 14) (Wi3E14) = = - - - (25,157) (5,032) (30,189)
At 31 March 2016 R-F-AFZA=t-B 33543 100884 79 {e) 27085 112370 890666 1173834
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2016

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Release of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Loss (gain) on fair value changes of

investment properties
Finance costs
Interest income

Release of translation reserve upon
dissolution of a foreign operation
Net loss (gain) recognised upon sale of

available-for-sale investments

Net loss (gain) on financial assets

designated at FVTPL
Gain on sale and leaseback
arrangement
Amortisation of deferred income
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Write-off of property, plant and
equipment

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital
Decrease (increase) in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables

and bills receivable

Decrease (increase) in other receivables

Decrease in mould deposits paid
Decrease in trade payables

Decrease in other payables and accruals
Decrease in mould deposits received

Cash generated from (used in)
operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) enterprise income tax paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

mMERERER

HE—T NF=A=1t—HItFE
2016 2015
—XRE —HE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FHT FHET
TR
BR 25 B A 143,012 85,933
?5%&
TES R & FRIE 704 716
ME- -WERZEITE
68,185 71,552
REYENFERILAR
EEZEE(8H) 6,000 (30,000)
B 765 B AN 959 1,428
FMEWKA (4,746) (3,277)
KRG SN TSR
(5] 55 54 (7% 1 - (5,993)
HEMHEERERER
BB (BA) 358 47 (507)
BREBEEAFETEZ
WS EERE (BF) F8E 140 (35)
HERERBELTHEEY
&7 11 (110,788) =
TEIEUR A 2 B 5H (1,604) -
HEWMX HEREEZ
A (100) (959)
W% BEREE
162 104
EEERESHAE 2
KERESRE 101,971 118,962
FERA () 29,135 (3,474)
EWE Z R & BN R
B (H80) 99,304 (19,812)
H b FE R FOR 2> (38 0) 69,326 (38,366)
B ERERESE D 3,445 3,918
FERT B 5 RO (61,876) (39,193)
o FE S AR R R FE A R AR A (7,298) (28,207)
BUE Bz & m (6,993) (5,095)
KR EISFTES
(FrfE) 2R & 227,014 (11,267)
ERNEAENER (11,263) (15,195)
B EARAFEA
([HFE])EEMBH (7,213) 6,212)
RETBELE (FifE) 2
REFHE 208,538 (32,674)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows &Z&8BEE&HRER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BHE_T—RF=ZA=T—HILFE
2016 2015
—B-RF —T—RF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bz FAET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Withdrawal of short-term deposits IREVE BT 3K 275,806 538,269
Proceeds on disposal/redemption of HE ERAHEHERE
available-for-sale investments FR12 518 1,550 7,570
Interest received B F B 4,746 3,277
Proceeds on redemption of financial BoA@EBREniEATE
assets at FVTPL AR BEE 2 IEA - 1,880
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HEWZE  ME N &
and equipment Ffi 18 2k 18 656 1,590
Net proceeds on sale and leaseback HERERBHELBEMERIEA
arrangement SRR 11 177,757 =
Placement of short-term deposits F e HFE (384,231) (454,815)
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BENMEZE
equipment (13,410) (29,331)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHRLERE
investments (6,666) (11,048)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, S TEEWZE  ME &
plant and equipment B (108) (2,967)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING REFHEE
ACTIVITIES ReFHE 56,100 54,425
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & E B
Dividend paid RS (30,189) (35,221)
New bank loans raised BEEEHMBRITER 17,050 =
Repayment of bank loans BERRITER (37,943) (33,780)
Interest paid ERFE (959) (1,428)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METEERS T
ACTIVITIES (52,041) (70,429)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) INCASH B&RBEEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B ORd) RHE 212,597 (48,678)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes — §MNi& E 5 & Sh i) 72 £ 3,978 =

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REDZHERREEE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 208,304 256,982

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REGZECHSRESEE
END OF THE YEAR, represented by BERETEFNIIRE
bank balances and cash 424,879 208,304
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is Allan Investment
Company Limited, a private company incorporated in Hong
Kong; and its ultimate holding company is Credit Suisse Trust
Limited, who is a trustee of The Cheung Lun Family Trust
(“Trust”), the discretionary beneficiaries of which are, among
other family members, the directors of the Company, Mr.
Cheung Shu Wan, Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms.
Cheung Lai See, Sophie. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacturing of
household electrical appliances.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”)

Application of amendments to HKFRSs

The Group has applied for the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the current
year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

The application of amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2. Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 16

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Leases*

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations?

Disclosure Initiative?
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

Depreciation and Amortisation?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014
Cycle?
Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined

- Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2. Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continueq)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and
for derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new requirements
for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments
to the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive income”
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt
instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Application of New And Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continueqd)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The directors of the Company anticipate the application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities (e.g. the Group’s investments in unlisted
investment fund and debt securities that are currently classified
as available-for-sale investments will have to be measured
at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods, with
changes in the fair value being recognised in profit or loss or
in OCI (if certain criteria are met)). Furthermore, the directors
of the Company expect that the application of the expected
credit loss model will result in earlier recognition of credit
losses in relation to the Group’s financial assets. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2. Application of New And Revised 2. BRAMIRLIETEEE

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

° Step 2: ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company have already commenced an
assessment of the impact of the application of HKFRS 15 and
is not yet in a position to state whether these would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2. Application of New And Revised 2. BRAMIRLIETEEEH

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 Leases, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities
for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless
the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the
lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the
lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion
and presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the
right-of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured
on a present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to
be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise
an option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is
significantly different from the lessee accounting for leases that
are classified as operating leases under HKAS 17 which does
not require the recognition of a right-of-use asset or a lease
liability for lessees under operating leases but requires certain
disclosure to be made in respect of such lease commitments
as disclosed in note 31. In respect of the lessor accounting,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

2. Application of New And Revised 2. BRAMIRLIETEEE

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (continueq)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The directors of the Company will assess the impact of the
application of HKFRS 16. For the moment, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of the application
of HKFRS 16 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements give some guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality in practice.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 1 will have a material impact on the
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have a
material effect on the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. TESHHBEK

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rule”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“CO”).

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with reference
to the provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits and to streamline with HKFRSs, which
became effective for the Company for the financial year ended
31 March 2016. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2016 have been changed to
comply with these new requirements. Comparative information
in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2015 are
presented or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements
based on the new requirements. Information previously
required to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing
Rules but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are
not disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value
in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEETTBRER @

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from operating
lease is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continueq)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. Examples and indicators that
individually or in combination would normally lead to a lease
being classified as a finance lease are:

o the lease transfers ownership of the asset to the lessee
by the end of the lease term;

° the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price
that is expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair value
at the date the option becomes exercisable for it to be
reasonably certain, at the inception of the lease, that the
option will be exercised;

o the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of
the asset even if title is not transferred;

o at the inception of the lease the present value of
the minimum lease payments amounts to at least
substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset;

o the leased assets are of such a specialised nature
that only the lessee can use them without major
modifications;

o if the lessee can cancel the lease, the lessor’'s losses
associated with the cancellation are borne by the lessee;

o gains or losses from the fluctuation in the fair value of the
residual accrue to the lessee (for example, in the form of
a rent rebate equalling most of the sales proceeds at the
end of the lease); and

o the lessee has the ability to continue the lease for a
secondary period at a rent that is substantially lower than
market rent.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEETTBRER @

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

When a sale and leaseback transaction results in an operating
lease, and the sale price is above fair value, the excess over
fair value is deferred and amortised over the period for which
the asset is expected to be used.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEETBRE @

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which

they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-
in, first-out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, available-for-sale (“AFS”)
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

3. Significant Accounting Policies 3. FEETTBRE @

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as FVTPL.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
or contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer
as part of a business combination may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments.: Recognition and Measurement permits the
entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 6c¢.

70 Allan International Holdings Limited TR Bl EE AR A T

EWMIA (&)

BBEE (&)

BEHFIF% (B

REFTAMS  MERARERHNE
R FRIFRME DB REBIRS
BRFEINR B EERI -

BEBEm N FEFAEZHEEE
M HEERSFIEFEEREIBIETE
REBBRIBAFEIR AP BEE
WOBRBBBRRAFEIR-

MR THIER - BIBTTEE E 5 B
BB BEER S R A
HEAREER 2 £HA 62 —H5
IR AR AR AT
YN S

o HIRERENREBMRENE
fo AR BRI B T —
Bt BRER

s UHBEEAKRAEEIIAZE
RERNIRE R EEK A HD
MBEESMBFREXMERE
HE YUARFESEEFGHH
RI - R EERHKEREAR
ZREPE 2

e BREE—EHZTHEANSITEL
Bz EH2H0h RESGTE
B3R @ T A AN E
HEHEHEHANETAERIIE
wHR AT EE-

BRERBRAFEARZMBEET
BRAHEZY MAEHFESIE T
] B Sk EN B R - NP
Rz BEFREREMFMBB LB
BERDZANE EEFEEHMAT
B | 25118 « R FER M TE6chT it
HHAEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, or loans and receivables.

Listed and unlisted debt securities and investment funds held
by the Group that are classified as AFS financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial
assets relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and distributions from AFS investment funds
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables and bills receivable, other receivables, short-
term deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables and bills receivable, assets are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they were assessed
not to be impaired individually. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period of 90 days, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets that are carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and bills receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable and a bill receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss
to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continueqd)

Impairment loss of financial assets (Continued)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed
through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and secured bank loans) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, translation costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Critical Accounting Judgements
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Critical Accounting Judgements
And Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors of the
Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property
portfolios and concluded that the Group’s investment
properties are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the directors of
the Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured
using the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale
is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised
any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment
properties in Hong Kong as the Group is not subject to any
income taxes on disposal of its investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Critical Accounting Judgements
And Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Investment properties

As described in note 16, investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuation performed by independent
professional surveyors. In determining the fair value, the
surveyors have used a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. In relying on the valuation report, the
management has exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. If there are changes in the assumptions used
for the valuation, the fair value of the investment properties
will change in future. As at 31 March 2016, the carrying
amount of investment properties was HK$242,000,000 (2015:

HK$248,000,000). Details are set out in note 16.

Depreciation

The carry value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
as at 31 March 2016 was HK$229,057,000 (2015:
HK$300,312,000). The Group depreciates the property, plant
and equipment on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 3 to 25 years, or over the lease terms, after
taking into account their estimated residual value, commencing
from the date the property, plant and equipment is available
for use. The estimated useful lives and dates that the Group
places the property, plant and equipment into productive use
reflects the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. If the estimated useful
life of property, plant and equipment did not reflect its actual
useful life, additional depreciation may be required.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Critical Accounting Judgements
And Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continueq)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group looks for
other appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurement.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 6¢ and
16 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank loans, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and new share issues as well as the

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  #Z=& B FE 3R & E /i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BHE_T—R"F-H=1t—HLFE
6. Financial Instruments 6. ERTH
6a. Categories of financial instruments 6a. £RIT AEH
2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Financial assets MK EE
Loans and receivables (including cash & 2t & JiE U B 7%
and cash equivalents) (BREASEREEE) 1,051,960 896,524
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 19,569 15,180
Financial assets designated at FVTPL ~ #@ERIEAFEAE 2
MIEEE 3,495 3,635
Financial liabilities mBaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost B % B EH SRR 260,507 340,832
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. BERERMEEBEREE
The Group’s major financial instruments include rEFEzETEZEemTEBEH#
available-for-sale investments, financial assets HERE ERBERKEATEE
designated at FVTPL, trade receivables and bills BrUBEE BRKESHER:
receivable, other receivables, short-term deposits, bank FEWEE - HiEURERK - M HATE
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables and FRITEBRKIRS  ENESEK
secured bank loans. Details of these financial instruments FoHMEMBRRR AR 2R
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated TER - ZEeMITEFBERS
with these financial instruments include market risk MaEZE -ZEem T EEER
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), e EmEREE (EEER - X
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to [Rfe & EMERRR) - EERRE
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management KomEh & & Bk o T XX R
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure BRZERRzBKX - BEEER
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and R BE VR % [ B LA RE R J% BRp A A8 2K
effective manner. HERBGEE 2 155 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. Financial Instruments (continveq) 6.

)

PR mE S

HiE — ke s B =R [E IEEE

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Market risk
Currency risk

ERITHE @

6b. MBEMEERERERBE (#)

5 B2
E%m g
ARBEHHEME R

TSN

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which exposes the Group
to foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

TEEFREBAZINERR P
HREMMERA  AEEAINE ST
B EREEREKBEZEREE
(ERCINE

Liabilities Assets
=4 BE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—"FE —ZT—AaF —RE —hEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET FETT
United States Dollar (“‘USD”) 7T 20,136 28,126 519,322 560,802
Euro (“EUR?) B 78 284 284 5 40
Renminbi (“RMB”) AR #& - = 136,320 132,953
HK Dollar (‘HK$”) BIT 63 - 623,444 487,059
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate AEEETEAZET - BTEA

fluctuations of USD, HK$ and RMB against the functional REELSSBEREER:
currency of respective group entities, which is either BB T AR ZE X KR

HK$ or RMB. As the USD will only vary between
HK$7.75=USD1.00 and HK$7.85=USD1.00 under the
Linked Exchange Rate System, the management of the
Company are of the opinion that the Group’s exposure
to USD relative to HK$ is minimal and accordingly, no
foreign currency sensitivity analysis on USD is presented.

The Group has only minimal transactions in EUR
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. In
management’s opinion, the Group has no significant
currencies risk on EUR at the year end and no sensitivity
analysis is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016
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BE-_T—NEF=A=1+—HIFE

6. Financial Instruments (continueq) 6. €T H»
6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies 6b. MBEREEEERBE (£)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mE Rk ()
Currency risk (Continued) ExmEp (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BREDN (&)
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to TERFIVWABRBAEEHNE S
a 3% (2015: 3%) increase and decrease in functional EERNeEKELHBINE
currency of respective group entities against the IZIJ:—F/EZ@JS% (ZE—h%F:
relevant foreign currencies. These percentages are the 3%) ZEBNLARAATLEE
sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign currency risk EBEANBERINERRETA 2
internally to key management personnel and represent BRERE - WREEELEERE
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible EEEH T B -HEREDIE
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity BREMIINEGFBE 2 HETFNER
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currencies HH ’jfﬁf\‘iﬂuﬂ%&‘,ﬁﬁ BEUAR
denominated monetary items and adijusts their translation MLANBIER 23% (ZFE—HF -
at the year end for a 3% (2015: 3%) change in foreign 3% ) 2 BB o IRBR A& 18 A0 ORL
currency rates. A positive (negative) number below DIHR AR E353% RT3
indicates an increase (decrease) in post-tax profit where EH (BB RTSZEEETED
the functional currencies of respective group entities EEBENBBEIINE -HMEEE
weaken 3% against the foreign currencies. A 3% ERIIEER /ER *E F‘% HNEE X,
(2015: 3%) strengthening of the functional currencies of (S0 %%iﬁ@ﬁ% —HREF:
respective group entities against the relevant currencies, 3%) ' I HBR fﬁxﬁﬁﬂi&ﬁjﬁﬁ
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the w&*ﬁﬁz%%“
profit.
Impact of HK$ Impact of RMB
BTHE ARBHE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-RE —hF ZE-XF —hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Profit or loss for the year A% 5 F| /#5418 14,026 10,959 3,415 3,330
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. ERTH =)

6b. MBEMEERERERBE (#)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The above is mainly attributable to the exposure to short-
term deposits, outstanding receivables and payables and
intergroup receivables and payables at the year end.

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate short-term deposits.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate secured bank loans (see note
26 for details of these loans) and bank balances.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the secured bank
loans outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis point
(2015: 10 basis point) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis point (2015: 10 basis
point) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 March 2016 would decrease/increase by HK$48,000
(2015: decrease/increase by HK$65,000). This is
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on
its secured bank loans.

mEEE (&)

EEERE (&)

BRRENNT (&)

EatE B R B FRE AR AE S
BB BRRRET REN
AR K K% 5= [ 7 2 B e B A R AR
HY LR ©

R % J7
REBNEEEAFFHAIRF
B SRR -

AEEEBEBIEBHNERNRITA
EHER (HERFE L E26)
FRITHEBREZ RE IR & F XA

@8 o
A

BRRE DI
TXRHEERE D TR RS B4
RERBEEEFEERMEZZE
FEFEREARETE - DT RE
RBEBHRDAEEZERR
BITERAEFEREEENME
FEemMAILEEZEREABIERF
KRy A OR10ER (=%
—RF10EE) URKREEE
HRERJeSBE T 2T H-o

HMARS EI0EH (ZT—H
F AR KA EfbAl

ARGEFHTE AXAEEHE—
T-XNEFE=ZA=+—HILEEZ
B B 1% 05 A1 16 w42 148,000
BL(ZE—RHF ®WD I
65,0008 7T) c Ik IREARSEE
KIS RFASOMNER@ER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk and credit
risk through its listed and unlisted debt investments and
unlisted investment funds classified as available-for-sale
investments and designated at FVTPL. The management
considers these risks are insignificant and therefore no
sensitivity analysis on such risks has been prepared.
However, the management will closely monitor such
exposures and consider hedging such exposures should
the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations at 31 March 2016 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables and the Group has
been largely dependent on a small number of customers
for a substantial portion of its business. The top three
customers represent over 91% (2015: 89%) of the
trade receivables at 31 March 2016. The failure of these
customers to make required payment could have a
substantial negative impact on the Group’s profits and
liquidity.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of
the Group has credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bank balances, liquid funds and
unlisted debt securities are limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks in Hong Kong or
financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables set out above, and liquid funds which are
deposited with several banks or financial institutions with
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank loan with a repayment on demand
clause is included in the time band for earliest repayment
regardless of the probability of the bank choosing to
exercise its right. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity tables
Weighted
average
interest rate
miE
FHRR
%
2016 ZE-RE
Financial liabilities BBaE
at amortised cost BERE
Trade payables ERESER -
Other payables H bR RN -
Secured bank loans BHERRTER
- variable rate =35 1.21
Weighted
average
interest rate
il
Fi5H|%
%
2015 “T-hf
Financial liabilities at BHEEZ
amortised cost BHRA
Trade payables EREHER -
Other payables H bR =
Secured bank loans BERBTER
- variable rate -28 1.44

e MR E SN

HE—Z—

6. ERTH =)

NEZA=T—HIEFE

6b. MHEAMEEBFERBER (£)
HEBELERE (E)
mBE R K
Carrying
On demand Total amount
orless 3 months to undiscounted  at 31 March
than 3 months 1year 1to2years  2to5years  Over5years cash flows 2016
ZE-AE
RERY, =faA - 3 KFRERE =ZA=t-H
SRR E-f BoE ZRF AEHE hEEE ZEEE
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS 000 HKS$000 HK$'000
FET TET FEr FET TET FiEr TET
197,215 3,502 - - - 200,717 200,717
2,585 - - - - 2,585 2,585
7,082 4,215 5,577 16,417 26,727 59,968 57,205
206,832 7,17 5,577 16,417 26,727 263,270 260,507
Carrying
On demand Total amount
or less than 3 months undiscounted at 31 March
3 months to 1 year 1102 years 2to5years  Over 5 years cash flows 2015
—E-1%
REXS =f@A - - KRERE =ZA=1+-H
SR=MER 2% 2-F ZRE AFNE nERR ZEEE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT FET FET AT FET FET
258,275 4,318 - - - 262,593 262,593
14 = - - = 14 141
19,447 7,958 5,635 16,588 32,158 81,786 78,098
277,863 12,276 5,635 16,588 32,158 344,520 340,832
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity tables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2015, bank loan
with a repayment on demand clause is included in the
“On demand or less than 3 months” time band in the
above maturity analysis according to the effective date
of the repayment on demand clause at the end of the
reporting period. As at 31 March 2016 and 31 March
2015, the aggregate carrying amount of such bank
loan amounted to HK$5,548,000 and HK$12,948,000,
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors of the Company do not believe
that it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretionary right to demand immediate repayment upon
effective date of the repayment on demand clause. The
directors believe that such bank loan will be repaid in 9
monthly instalments (2015: 21 monthly instalments) after
the end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment date set out in the loan agreement.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ from those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

RS

BE-_T—NEF=A=1+—HIFE

EHaE

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. T H »
6c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments 6c. SRTANTENSE
This note provides information about how the Group IEH IR AN R B N B E B BB
determines fair values of various financial assets. BEEMNAFEZER -
(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that () ZFEBHHBELEERFER

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique used), as well
as the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

Fair value as at

AFE

BREEMEER L FELE
RERERR  AEEF D W
BEEIRATFEAE - TR
RUEMAEEXSTVHEE
M BRERFENER (F
AP ABERM) A RiR
NP EF 28 ABEN A #
ERESATEAES/R

FESERFEIREEMR -

Financial assets
MBEEE

Available-for-sale
investments

AR ERE

Available-for-sale
investments

AEHERE
Available-for-sale
investments

AR ERE

Financial assets

designated at FVTPL

31 March 2016
R-E-R§
=A=1+-H

Investment in unlisted
investment funds
HK$11,356,000

RERFELEMREES
11,356,000/ 7T

Investment in unlisted
debt securities
HK$3,538,000

AN P ERE
3,538,000/ 7T

Investment in listed
debt securities
HK$4,675,000

BER FERES
4,675,000 T

Investment in unlisted
investment funds
HK$3,495,000

BRRRRATENE. RERFLMREES

MHEE

3,495,000/ 7T
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31 March 2015
RZZT—HE
=A=t+-H

Investment in unlisted
investment funds
HK$8,840,000

BRERFELEMREES
8,840,000/ 7T

Investment in unlisted
debt securities
HK$6,340,000

AN FHERE
6,340,000/ 7T

N/A

@R

Investment in unlisted
investment funds
HK$3,653,000

BRERFELEMREES
3,653,000/ 7T

Fair value

hierarchy  Valuation technique

AFEES (HERMN

Level 3 Net asset value of the
investment fund
(Noteg)

E=H REEEMAEFE
(Hiita)

Level 3 Discounted cash flow
(Note b)

B=H ZEBRBEERE
(Hitb)

Level 1 Quoted bid prices
in an active market

—# REBTZMREEE

Level 3 Net asset value of the
investment fund
(Notea)

E=H REEEMAEFE
(Hiita)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. Financial Instruments (continveq)

6c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

Note a: The key unobservable inputs used in the
determination of fair value of the investment
funds is the net asset value per unit of the
investment funds, which ranges from HK$103
to HK$74,017 per unit. (2015: HK$106
to HK$74,202), provided by the financial
institution.

Note b: The key unobservable inputs are expected
yields to maturity of the unlisted debt securities
which reflects the credit risks of the issuers.
The weighted average vyield to maturity of the
unlisted debt security as at 31 March 2016 is
5.51% (2015: 2.55%)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosures required)

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

e

R E S

HiE = —eEs B =R [E IEEE

6.

ERITHE»

6¢C.

EMITAQVEFE(F)

(i) FEBYYHBEEZELFER
BAREEEZ L FEE
(%)

W&a% VREREESH
AFENEZ A EH
RMBABIEE 25
REESBENNFE
EfE SEMMA1035
TET4017TB T (=
—hAF:AR106ETE
74,202 70) - A& @b
HERE HR A o

Hiitb: E BRI A
BE HIELTESE
HRTEA M = R W A R
%T%HAMGT
F‘#tmmﬁﬁ-

B D04 T 25 Uk 2 A

T—RE=H :‘f‘—El
REI#HEA551% (=
T—RF:255%) °

(i) FEEILTERELEME
RN FEITENIHEE
RUBEEZ L FHE(BE
BRFH 2 FERE)
BEERA REAPBHHRERA
ZHBEERMBREZRK
EEEE X TEES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. ERIHE»
6c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments 6c. TRMITAAFEFE (&)
(Continued)

(i) BEEEF=RAFETE

(iii)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

measurements of financial assets

ZH

Financial
Available- assets
for-sale designated at
investments FVTPL
BRBR
BAVETE
AHHERE ZHBEE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
At 1 April 2014 RZZE—NFEMA—H 11,559 5,480
Total gains/(losses): BEMN/ (BE):
—in profit or loss —B% 507 35
- in other comprehensive income - Hitr2Ehas
~ net gain on revaluation of —AfEHERE
avallable-for-sale investments BHEMFE 143 =
- cumulative gain reclassified —HETHHEREN
to profit or loss on sale of 2 BAEFHE
available-for-sale investments FEER (507) =
Purchases EE 11,048 -
Proceeds from disposal/redemption HeE /BRAREHE (7,570) (1,880)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZE-AF=A=+—HK=
Z-HFNA—H 15,180 3,635
Total gains/(l0sses): BERN/ (B8):
— in profit or loss —B# (47) (140)
- in other comprehensive income - Eirmka
— net loss on revaluation of —AHEERE
available-for-sale investments ERERETE (685) =
— cumulative loss reclassified —HETHEEREN
to profit or loss on sale of 2 ERENDE
available-for-sale investments FEER 47 =
Purchases EE 1,949 =
Proceeds from disposal/redemption HE/ERAEHE (1,550) =
At 31 March 2016 RZE—RF
=ZRA=+—H 14,894 3,495
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. ERTH =)

6c. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

(iii)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value
measurements of financial assets (Continued)
Of the total gains or losses for the year included in
profit or loss, unrealised loss of HK$140,000 (2015:
gain of HK$31,000) relates to financial assets
designated at FVTPL held at the end of the current
report period. Fair value gains or losses on financial
assets designated at FVTPL are included in “other
gains and losses”.

Included in other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 March 2016 is unrealised loss of
HK$618,000 (2015: gain of HK$23,000) related
to unlisted investment fund and debt securities
classified as available-for-sale investments held
at the end of the current reporting period and is
reported as changes of “investment revaluation
reserve”.

Segment Information

Information reported to the Company’s executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on geographical regions.

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing
of household electrical appliance. The Group is currently
organised into four operating divisions — Europe sales, Asia
sales, America sales and other regions sales. The information
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance is based on these operating divisions.
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(i) HBEEEZE=RLFEIE
ZH R (E)
RERBEZPFTABFISKE
BrREelE—EREEE
BUUEBT(ZE—RH%F:
BFIBITEIT)  EAR
EHRFEZBEREBEREA
FEAECHMBEET A
EBBERATEFEZ
MBEE A FERFIRE
Bt ATEMAR RERE]
ﬁq o

ERAREHREE6IESTE
T(ZZE—HF: AN2E3
FETIRBE_Z—RF
—A=+t—BLEFEDFA
H2mEURA - £ E R
DR/EZLTREEE R
EREH2IBAIHENER
ERIREEMER] &
o

7 EHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

7. Segment Information continueq)

Segment Revenues and Results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and
results for each of the reportable and operating segments.

Year ended 31 March 2016

e MR E SN

HE_T—E=A=1t—HItEE

7. ?HER #)
AEE R &
UTFPREAE@BRTSHESES
R TS 2 U o R 2 S

BE-_F-—NFZF=1+—HIFE

Europe Asia America  Other regions  Consolidated
B M =M Hith = Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue (Note a) DEEEAE (Hita) 812,435 394,762 311,248 46,880 1,565,325
Segment profit ol Yl 56,922 27,658 21,807 3,285 109,672
Other gains and losses (except net HtRHREER NEER
foreign exchange loss) FERIN) 252
Depreciation (except moulds) E (AR (64,192)
Loss from changes in fair value of BENEZATEZS
investment properties FIEENER (6,000)
Gain on sale and leaseback arrangement & K &£ B
FEH 2 BF 110,788
Finance costs BBER (959)
Unallocated income and expenses, net AP EUWA RFIX 2%
(Note b) (Kiztb) (6,549)
Profit before tax PR AR A 143,012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016
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HE_T—RE=A=1t—HItEE

Segment Information (continueq) 7. DEER &)
Segment Revenues and Results (Continued) PTHEEBEREE (&F)
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE—_FT—aF=A=+—HIFEF
Europe Asia America  Other regions  Consolidated
E i M Hipih e e
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FAETT FAT FHEIT
Segment revenue (Note a) DEE XA (Hita) 988,552 466,451 404,493 86,507 1,946,003
Segment profit ol Yl 68,131 32,148 27,877 5,962 134,118
Other gains and losses (except net HitnBHREE (INERF
foreign exchange gain) FERIN) (1,397)
Depreciation (except moulds) e (RERSN) (67,166)
Gain from changes in fair value of REMEZ DTEE
investment properties FIEEREF 30,000
Finance costs B%ER (1,428)
Unallocated income and expenses, net A2 EUWA RS FHE
(Note b) (Hiitb) (8,194)
Profit before tax BR BRI A 85,933

Note a: The allocation of segment revenue is determined based on
destinations of shipment of products.
Note b: Unallocated income and expenses represented other

income, central administration costs and directors’ salaries.

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit
earned by each segment without allocation of other income,
central administration cost and directors’ salaries, other
gains and losses (except net foreign exchange gain (loss)),
depreciation (except moulds), (loss) gain from changes in fair
value of investment properties, finance costs and gain on sale
and leaseback arrangement. This is the measure reported to
the Group’s chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. Revenue
reported above represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both years.

Hiita : 2 ESEEREA D A2 B E A
M2 B A9 T T E

Sl N Y=EY 2
A FRITEEFREFFH L

Kb :

AE2RREENI 2 ETHREARE
B2 et BRMAR (AR E3)
7 7B F AR B & — 0 BE AT R A )4
MW RDEEEMBA - FRITHRE
AkEZFHE HiABENREE (SMNE
& (B8 ) FERIN) - IrE (RARK
SN REMEZ R TEREBMELN
(BER)&FN BHERRKERER
CIEZBEFTEL 2 B - AtETERE
B E2LERRADER FUEERR
DENAZERE - LHliFRE 22X
TIRIMNBREPAELR - EMFRILAR

BHEDEHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

Segment Information (continueq) 7.

Segment Assets And Liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’ assets and liabilities

by reportable and operating segment:

Segment Assets

Europe

Asia

America
Other regions

Segment assets

Unallocated assets
Available-for-sale investments
Financial assets designated as FVTPL

Short-term deposits

Bank balances and cash

Investment properties

Plant, equipment and machinery
(except moulds)

Club debentures

Other receivables

Tax recoverable

Other unallocated assets (Note)

Consolidated assets

Note: Other unallocated assets comprised prepaid lease payments

]
HE—F

e MR E SN

ToE= R = A —[E IR

DEEFE (=)

THEEREE

AT AREBIZA 2R EEED D

MEEMBEER:

T EEE
2016 2015
—E-KREF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
S 204,444 263,600
EEN 104,393 131,652
M 74,096 106,876
Hfbib[m 12,226 24,629
D EBEE 395,159 526,757
KOMEE
AHEERE 19,569 15,180
BRBHERATEFEZ
MG ERE 3,495 3,635
TR EREREN 305,732 197,307
RITHEFRES 424,879 208,304
BEYHE 242,000 248,000
W5 - B2 R Es
(R EBRIN) 222,228 293,769
gHEES 13,866 13,866
H th 8 AR 7R 29,918 99,244
FERTIIR 11,695 7,692
HEtARDBELEE (Hat) 25,645 30,077
mEEAE 1,694,186 1,643,831

and deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and

equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

7. Segment Information continueq)

Segment Assets And Liabilities (Continueq)

Segment Liabilities

Europe

Asia

America
Other regions

Segment liabilities (Note)

Unallocated liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Deferred income
Secured bank loans
Tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

Note: Segment liabilities represented mould deposits received by each

segment.

7. DEER &)
PTEHEERERE (&)
S EHEE
2016 2015
—E-XHF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FrET FET
BOM 14,042 17,496
D) 6,379 7,747
M 5,723 7,194
Bt i (= 775 1,475
DEBE (K7 26,919 33,912
ROMREE
BB BERR 200,717 262,593
E Ath A BR AR R FE A AR A 133,242 140,540
PEIEUT A 56,153 =
BHEMIBEITER 57,205 78,098
FEA F I8 33,261 40,294
IE JE R 18 12,855 12,939
REAaRE 520,352 568,376
W HBEABEEEE—H I WE
il & o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

]
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_ZT—FZAZt+HLEE
7. Segment Information (continueq) 7. DEER #)
Information about Major Customers FEXFMNER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years 7N &R B EA [R) B FB iR 4B SH S RE10% 3K A
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as EHEPKEDT
follows:
2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET FET
Customer A (Europe, Asia, Americas and EPEA (BN - Z2M -
Other regions) EMREMME) 523,977 743,101
Customer B (Europe, Asia, Americas and EFEB (BUM - 22 -
Other regions) M R E b= ) 463,750 605,584
Customer C (Europe, Asia, Americas and EEC (BUM - ZaM -
Other regions) oM R B M b [ ) 204,135 208,638
Geographical Information iy & & F

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country of
domicile), and PRC.

Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented
based on the geographical location of the assets.

Hong Kong A
PRC &

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and club
debentures.
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o

BRAKREZERDEERENEE
B M 251

2016 2015
—E—-XHF —E—AEF
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FETT FET
246,367 261,742
250,335 316,647
496,702 578,389
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

7. Segment Information continueq)

Other Segment Information

mEMBERE

B 7 T=FISE

K

:I:—?

Bl

DEEFE (=)

HesHER

Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-_ZFE—ANF=ZHA=1+—HIFE
Other Total
Europe Asia America regions segment  Unallocated Consolidated
BN M EJ| HithE AHEE RAE &
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FE7T FE7T FET FET FE7 FE7
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or LEREE B SR EMN D 505 5 = &
segment assets: B EEE-
Additions to non-current assets ~ FEABEEZN 2,121 865 1,212 82 4,280 12,097 16,377
Depreciation il 1,996 830 1,086 83 3,995 64,190 68,185
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision IEETE RREAEEEERRA
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BEREEREND ‘E‘ i M) B YJESTE %
loss or segment assets: DEEE -
Interest income on bank deposits  $R1T77 3% 2 K| 8 A - - - - - 4,418 4,418
Interest income on available-for- A H £ 1% E 2 7S MA
sale investments - - - - - 328 328
Rental income He WA - - - - - 5,601 5,601
Year ended 31 March 2015 Br —F—hF=A=+—HIFFEF
Other Total
Europe Asia America regions segment  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BM B EM HitripE PEAE RAR Fa
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FAT FET FHET FET FET FAT FAT
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or LLHFEE BERETE 0 D 5 F S E
segment assets: B HHEE-
Additions to non-current assets ~ JEREVEEEZ N 2,349 907 1,000 144 4,400 30,585 34,985
Depreciation & 2,351 892 1,005 138 4,386 67,166 71,652
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision IEEREEBRMEAFEREREAL
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit or BRBEERET 285 80 m M kBB K
loss or segment assets: DEEE
Interest income on bank deposits &1 3 2 F| 8 A - - - - - 3,024 3,024
Interest income on available-for- A H £ E 2 7 EMA
sale investments = = = = = 253 253
Rental income AElA - - - - - 4,964 4,964
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

e MR E SN

BE-_T—NEF=A=1+—HIFE

8. Other Income 8. Htlg A
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—AhF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Rental income GEEON 5,601 4,964
Interest on bank deposits SRITERF B 4,418 3,024
Amortisation of deferred income PRAE WA 2 1 51 1,604 =
Building management fee income BFEREBRA 853 792
Scrap sales 56 BE 446 1,151
Interest on available-for-sale investments AL EREZFE 328 253
Others HAD, 170 382
13,420 10,566
- . = A 77— = =
9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and 9. EE FETHAEREER
Employees’ Emoluments [
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=M<
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the FRRBEBEA ETHER ARG
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules BIEENESRETETRAEDN
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: T -
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_—_E—_NF=F=1+—HI
FE
Ms. Ms.
Mr. Mr. Cheung Cheung Mr.
Cheung Cheung  Lai Chun, Lai See, Cheung Total
Lun Shu Wan Maggie Sophie Pui 2016
ReiE REBLE REYL: REHZL RERE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FAET FET FET
(A} EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS  #{72=
Fees e - - - - - -
Other emoluments: Hib i &
Salaries and other benefits ¥ & [ H g 7l 3,005 2,791 1,460 1,655 1,306 10,217
Bonus (Notg) TEAL (HizE) 563 2,216 273 310 248 3,610
Contributions to retirement R 4Kk7& Al 3T & £t 3%
benefits scheme - 269 146 165 132 712
Sub-total INEE 3,568 5,276 1,879 2,130 1,686 14,539

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_Z—"F=HA=+—HLFE
9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and 9. EE FETHAEREE
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq) & )
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ E=M< (£)
For the year ended 31 March 2016 (Continued) BE_FE—~NF=F=1+—HIE
FE (&
Mr. Lai Professor
Ah Ming, Lo Chung Dr. Chan Total
Leon Mau How Chun 2016
BRREE EREYR REEHEL wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
(B  INDEPENDENT BUEHTEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fees wne 120 - _ 120
Other emoluments: Hi &
Salaries and other benefits HeREMEH - - _ _
Bonus (Notg) TEAL (i) - - _ _
Contributions to retirement RIRBHIE B0

benefits scheme = - - -

Sub-total Nt 120 - - 120
The independent non-executive directors’ EIBIIERITESNME
emoluments shown above were mainly for their FEREETARAESNR
services as directors of the Company. T o

Total k] 14,659
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2015

e MR E SN

BE—_ZT—"E=A=1t—HItEE

9. EE -FETHAEBREER
M =)

(@ E=M< (&)
HBE—F—aF=—HA=+4+—HIF

FE
Ms. Ms.
Mr. Mr. Cheung Cheung Mr.
Cheung Cheung Lai Chun, Lai See, Cheung Total
Lun Shu Wan Maggie Sophie Pui 2015
RiRtE REBLE REZxL REHZL RITFLA ks
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
() EXECUTIVEDIRECTORS  #I{7&Z
Fees we - - - - - -
Other emoluments: Hie
Salaries and other benefits ¥4 & E A&7 3,011 2,732 1,455 1,671 1,328 10,197
Bonus (note) T (HEE) 507 2,280 250 279 250 3,566
Contributions to retirement R4k Al 3T &I 4t 3%
benefits scheme - 269 146 165 132 712
Sub-total et 3,518 5,281 1,851 2,115 1,710 14,475

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the
Group.

100 Allan International Holdings Limited SR BIBR B AR A 7

EIARTESMEEERE
FEMEEARRNAKE
SRR IRTS



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B FE 3R & E /i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_Z—"F=HA=+—HLFE
9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and 9. EE FETHAEREE
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq) & )
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ E=M< (£)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 (Continued) BE—F—AF=H=+1—HI
FEE(E)
Mr. Lai Professor
Ah Ming, Lo Chung Dr. Chan Total
Leon Mau How Chun 2015
RS AE ERXYE BEEEL BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(B)  INDEPENDENT BUFHITES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Fees e 120 - - 120
Other emoluments: Hini <
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF - = = =
Bonus (note) T4 (Hat) - = = =
Contributions to retirement RIRE BT

benefits scheme - - - _

Sub-total N 120 - - 120
The independent non-executive directors’ FIBIIERTESHME
emoluments shown above were mainly for their FEREEARAESNR
services as directors of the Company. 7%
Total ot 14,595
Note: The performance related incentive payment is Kra: ERIBEBES TR
determined with reference to the performance of EBENALREBE
the individual and the Group. IRTE ©
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan is also the Chief Executive of SRR E TR G ZITHAE
the Company and his emoluments disclosed above H - HERBEECMES I BEM
include those for services rendered by him as the Chief ERREBEITHEH RIS 2 EA -
Executive.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Professor Lo Chung Mau waived his fees of HK$120,000
(2015: HK$120,000) for the year ended 31 March 2016.
Dr. Chan How Chun waived her fees of HK$120,000
(2015: HK$120,000) for the year ended 31 March 2016.

(o) Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included four directors (2015: five directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2015: nil)
highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

e MR E SN

HE_T—E=A=1t—HItEE

9. EE FEITHAEBREES

< =)

(@ ESME (&)

EREXBBERBEZE_S—XRF=
A=1+—BILLMEEHREI128BE
T(ZE—RF:128%F7T) ° R
ZEBLIRBE-_T—X<F=A
=t+—HIEREEBSI12EET
(ZE—RF:1288T) °

(b) EEME
FAARBRLRSH

TREE

ROAES (2T hF: AuE
) AEMeFBRERN LEX-F
N #HT—R(ZE—H: &)k
ARBIER EZBITHRABNK
=R B R H MM

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—E—R¥ —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT

Salaries, allowances and SN ORBE KR B Y=
benefits in kind 1,373 -
Performance related bonuses B3R IR HMATEAT 264 =
Retirement benefits RIREE H 137 =
1,774 -
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9. Directors’, Chief Executive’s and
Employees’ Emoluments (continueq)

(b)

Employees’ emoluments (Continued)
The number of the highest paid employees who are not
the directors of the Company whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors of the Company, chief executives and
employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Annual Report 2015/2016 —E—RHEZE=-F— A FFHK

e MR E SN

HE_T—RE=A=1t—HItEE

9. EE FEITHAEBREES

< =)

(b) EEME (&)

AZFRARRNREZRSFH

BF BN T AT EE

No. of employees
For the year ended 31 March

BEHE

BEZE=-A=+t—HLEE

2016
—E-RE =S —EeE
1 N/A 7 A
1 N/A 7 A

REMFA NEELEAZ R
UEeFAL(BRARAE
£ TETHRABNREER) B
SERMBEARSE L Be BB

e -
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e MR E SN

BE-_T—NEF=A=1+—HIFE

10. Other Gains and Losses 10. Ht B2 F R &8
2016 2015
—E-KEF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain SNVE (E518) BF)F R (2,959) 2,666
Gain on disposal of property, LEWHE  WE KRB &
plant and equipment 100 959
Write-off of property, plant and equipment VI - R K 5% 1 B (163) (104)
Cumulative (loss) gain reclassified from other &Rt HEREHEMEE
comprehensive income to profit or loss on Wes 1828 AR BT 0 FEAY
disposal of available-for-sale investments 25 (B8) &F (47) 507
Net (loss) gain from changes in fair value of ~ FiBIBHRIEZ A FEFE 2
financial assets designated at FVTPL MGEEEs AT EE
FEER (BE)BFNEHE (140) 35
Others HAb (2) -
(3,211) 4,063
11.Gain on Sale and Leaseback N HEREREAEZIFME
Arrangement/Deferred Income EZEBREERA

On 13 January 2016, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”) to dispose a property, namely, all that 12th
Floor of Zung Fu Industrial Building, No. 1067 King’'s Road,
Hong Kong, (the “Property”) with a carrying amount of
HK$9,212,000 at a cash consideration of HK$179,000,000.
The fair value at the date of disposal was approximately
HK$120,000,000 based on the valuation carried out by RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional
surveyor not connected with the Group.

RHL Appraisal Ltd. is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The fair value was determined based on the market
comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for
similar properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B FE 3R & E /i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_ T R"F=A=+—HILFE

11.Gain on Sale and Leaseback N LEREREAEZIFME
Arrangement/Deferred Income EZBFBREWA &)
(Continued)
In addition, pursuant to the agreement, upon completion of BN RIBA W EERRHE
the transaction, the Group continues to occupy the property AEREERE AR L —IBHEA
by entering into a tenancy agreement with the Purchaser in MEMR=F BXH57KE BIZF
respect of the Property for three years commencing from the —ANEZA=-RHEF - BRHERER
date of completion, 3 March 2016. This sale and leaseback AR SEREEHRE -

transaction resulted in an operating lease.

Since the sales price of the Property is above its fair value, the BERZMEZHEBRSNE D\$ﬁ
excess over fair value is deferred and amortised over the lease BENAFEEREER=FANE
period of three years. Ko s -
Gain on sale and leaseback arrangement arising on the HERERRMELHMEEZ BN :
transaction:
HK$ 000
FET
Gain on disposal of Property immediately HEYE Z BF BN
recognised in profit or loss REZPER
Fair value of the Property /NS | 120,000
Carrying amount of the Property (Note 17) VI ZREE (HiE17) (9,212)
110,788
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BE_T—RNE-A=+—HIEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016

11. Gain on Sale and Leaseback
Arrangement/Deferred Income
(Continued)

The deferred income as at 31 March 2016 arising on the

transaction:

Consideration received
Less: Legal and professional fees

Fair value of the Property

Deferred income at the time of disposal
Credited to profit or loss during the year

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Non-current assets
Current assets
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M. EERERCBELTHRE
£ BF,CEEWA )

BN -

BB

wWOARREREM

MEZRFE

RHER ZIREHRA
FRAERBNBREP AR

EERA G 2 D -

FRBEE
MENEE

R-ZE-—RF=ZA=1T—HRELXZ

HK$'000
FET

179,000

(1,243)

177,757

(120,000)

57,757

(1,604)

56,153

36,901

19,252

56,153
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_T-—R"F-H=1t—HLFE
/,
12.Income Tax Expense 12. i8I
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: REFFHIA :
Hong Kong BB 3,811 12,443
PRC Enterprise Income Tax AR EMER 7,578 6,311
11,389 18,754
Overprovision in prior years: BEFERERE:
Hong Kong BE (1,025) (96)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R TSR (2,924) (4,221)
(3,949) (4,317)
Deferred tax (Note 27): BIERIE (Hfit27)
Current year KEE (84) 1,016
7,356 15,453
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated WEFE 2 BAFGEE T AL ET R
assessable profit for both years. BRAIZ16.5% 2 Tl Rt & -
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise RIEBEFBECEMEEE ([FFE]) &
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of EITAMAR B ARZEERE
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. 131 525% °
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_T-—R"F-H=1t—HLFE

12. R EFHBEX 2

ARER 2 RBMB A HEGE S B R

12.Income Tax Expense (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

Hip 2 E R A FRBADEM T -

2016 2015
—F —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before tax B ¢ B g A 143,012 85,933
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits BREBNERT%E16.5%
Tax rate of 16.5% 23,597 14,179
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 71~ 7] 307 2 53 2 % 74 18 57 £
for tax purpose 1,763 1,292
Tax effect of income that is not taxable EAMB 2 WAKNRIEL 2
for tax purpose (19,947) (6,013)
Effect of different tax rates in the PRC R BE LN R E 2 28 4,351 4,117
Overprovision in respect of prior years BEFEREREG (3,949) (4,317)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERHIEEFEZZE 1,983 4,418
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ZAIARMERMIBER 2 A
recognised (161) (88)
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings RO BEAEN 2 FEHT 654 1,041
Others HAb (935) 824
Tax charge for the year REFHRIAS H 7,356 15,453
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

13. Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Staff salaries and allowances
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes

Total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments

Depreciation for property, plant and
equipment

Direct outgoings in relation to rental income

Release of prepaid lease payments

Auditor’s remuneration

14.Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year
2016 Interim dividend of HK1.5 cents
(2015: 2015 interim dividend of
HK2.5 cents) per ordinary share

2015 final dividend of HK7.5 cents
(2015: 2014 final dividend of
HK8 cents) per ordinary share

mEMBERE

S

BE-TR"F=-HA=1t—BHLFE

13. ZFEimH

AEE MR TIRIE:

B T % B No2 Rk
BRRAEFET SR

METRAN (BREEME)

ME BEERETE
BREESRANERH
FRERFANS A
REEN B £

A

14. RE

FAERRIRE ZKRE
TN AR HARR S
I mAR1.58 1L
—ET—hF: %
HERRR B2 5781 )
—RERAKRE
HE@ART 5810
—hF: _FT-MF
RNEA AR S8 L)

—
— =

— R4
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2016 2015
—E—XRE —hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
295,809 320,482
23,865 19,138
319,674 339,620
68,185 71,652

784 783

704 716

2,165 2,177

2016 2015
—E—-REF —hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
5,032 8,386
25,157 26,835
30,189 35,221
—hRFEZE-RFFH

109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =& B FE 3R & E /i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_Z—"F=A=+—HLFE
14. Dividends (continueq) 14. R B (&)
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend R ERERE ARBIZEZERIR
of HK5.5 cents per share and a special dividend of HK28 cents BHE_T—RNFZA=Z+—HLF
per share in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: & REIE BB RAR5.58 1l MR I B &=
final dividend of HK7.5 cents per share in respect of the year frogE Il (—E—RH:BHE-_T—AF
ended 31 March 2015) has been proposed by the directors of A=+t HALEFEZREREAS
the Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders f&7.578140) o iK% 2 RERRR B &
in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The final dividend 5 7l A BB BUS AN A B AR R A B g 2R
and special dividend will be paid on 12 September 2016 TZBRERBAFRG EHE UYHER-F
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of —A~NENLA+ZHERNSFRZ=ZZ—X
Members of the Company on 26 August 2016. FNAZ+TARBRINAQARREZM
pdi3
15. Earnings per Share 15. 3R 27
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to FRADBEEARERE ANEREF
the owners of the Company is based on the following data: ZETETIRBATER
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings REREXRBFME < &H
per share (Profit for the year attributable to (RNFEAHEERA A
owners of the Company) HmAEAZEHN) 135,656 70,480

Number of shares

BOHE
2016 2015
—E-KRE S S
‘000 ‘000
i F
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose of FEREREF M S 2
basic earnings per share Rl IEnE ¢ 335,433 335,433
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both EMFERABRTBEEE 2L BK
years as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue. MR B EREERT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_T-—R"F-H=1t—HLFE
16. Investment Properties 16. BE W
2016 2015
—E-KREF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
FAIR VALUE ~NFE
Balance at beginning of year FE 248,000 218,000
(Decrease) increase in fair value NFE R A) 8
recognised in profit or loss RIBZE N ER (6,000) 30,000
Balance at end of year FRER 242,000 248,000

Unrealised (loss) gain on property valuation Bt A (BB B2 RKER

included in profit or loss Y% & hH & A (6,000) 30,000
Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment EEREVENLAFEFTEZ
properties
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 R-_E—XRF=ZA=+—HBEK_F
March 2016 and 31 March 2015 has been arrived at on the —hAF=A=+—H rEEKREYWHE
basis of a valuation carried out on the respective dates by RHL AV ERBIIEEHNEESER
Appraisal Ltd., an independent qualified professional surveyor HERMXFITHEBRBABRAREL
not connected with the Group. it B ERETTE o
The fair value was determined based on the market AFEDERT S 2 LB A ERER
comparable approach that reflects recent transaction prices for V)RR BT R B K o

similar properties.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and FEHEMERN R FER - & K& F
best use of the properties is their current use. AZm¥EeBBFERAR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

16. Investment Properties (continuea)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about their fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2015 and 2016

are as follows:

Commercial property units located in
Hong Kong

Commercial property units located in
Hong Kong

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

One of the key unobservable inputs used in valuing the
investment properties was the average price per square foot,
which was HK$20,254 per square foot (2015: HK$20,763 per
square foot). A decrease in the price per square foot used
would result in a decrease in fair value measurement of the

investment property, and vice versa.

All of the Group’s investment properties have been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

16. REW X #)

e MR E SN

BE-_T—NEF=A=1+—HIFE

RZE—FRF=A=+—"HBEK=-ZE
—NF=Z=A=1+—"H x"EE7EKE

MERERRFEFR 2 ERF510

™~

Fair value

as at

31 March

Level 3 2016

NEE

R-ZZB—XREF

E=H/K =A=+—H

HK$ 000 HK$'000

FET FET
URBEBZEAEYEEN

242,000 242,000

Fair value

as at

31 March

Level 3 2015

DTFER

—T—hEF

=/ =A=+—H

HK$'000 HK$ 000

FET FET
URBEBZEAEYMEEN

248,000 248,000

%o

RERE=RWRBEAREL -

=R — 2 AR E M AR ER
BYENEBTARESR NEFER
2BEZAB L (ZE—H 288 E763
BIT) c MBS ERE®RLD
BERREMENDNFERLD K2R

AEEMAREMECETESASE

BEX - RRTTEEEMR-
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

17.Property, Plant and Equipment

COST

At 1 April 2014
Exchange adjustments
Additions
Disposals/write-off

At 31 March 2015 and
1 April 2015
Exchange adjustments
Additions
Disposals/write-off
Disposal under sale and
leaseback arrangement

At 31 March 2016

DEPRECIATION

At 1 April 2014

Exchange adjustments

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals/
write-off

At 31 March 2015 and
1 April 2015

Exchange adjustments

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals/
write-off

Eliminated on disposal
under sale and leaseback
arrangement

At 31 March 2016

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 March 2016

At 31 March 2015

e MR E SN

B

EE-RFZA=T—HILFE

17. 9% BERRHE

Furniture,
Plant fixtures
Leasehold Factory and and Moulds Motor Construction
land Buildings buildings  machinery  equipment and tools vehicles in progress Total
BERE KL %#E
HELH BT IR R k#fE EBARIE RE  KEBIR &t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FET FBT AT FAT TAT FAT AT
(Notg) (Notg)
(i) (Hiit)
RAE
RZE-NEmA—H 9,615 4,374 191,566 390,624 174,143 34,159 12,128 - 816,609
HNEHRZ - - - (370) (1,520) (31) (324) - (2,045)
NE - - - 12,974 14,622 4,537 2,925 27 34,985
HE /M - - - (3,246) (1,662) @ (4,329) - (9,284)
RZE-H%=AH
=+-HREA-B 9,615 4,374 191,566 399,982 185,483 38,618 10,400 27 840,065
SNERR - - (5,582) (13,810) (5,864) (76) (169) (17) (25,518)
E - - - 5,948 3,904 4,343 1,780 402 16,377
HE/ Wk - - - (5,143) (1,39) (19) (2,641) - (9,193)
RINERER
By (9,490) (3,355) - - - - - - (12,845)
RZE—1RE
=f=t-H 125 1,019 185,984 386,977 182,127 42,872 9,370 412 808,886
ik
WZZE-NEmA—H 264 4,374 59,496 263,527 115,553 27,155 8,535 = 478,904
HNEHRZ - - (1) (385) (1,528) 22) (208) - (2,154)
REERRE 11 = 7,661 33,631 24,205 4,547 1,477 - 71,552
HE /MRS
- - - (3,118) (1,647) (47) (3,737) - (8,549)
W=E-1%=AH
=+-HREA-H 275 4,374 67,146 293,655 136,603 31,633 6,067 - 539,753
HNEHRZ - - (1,396) (10,026) (4,420) (39) (121) - (16,002)
REERRB 8 - 7,547 32,314 22,766 4,180 1,870 = 68,185
HE /MRS
- - - (4,946) (1,363) (13) (2,152) - (8,474)
RINERER
B R R E
(278) (3.355) - - - - - - (3,633)
RZE-—1E
=A=1+-H 5 1,019 73,297 310,997 153,586 35,761 5,164 - 579,829
REE
RZE—RE
=f=t-H 120 - 112,687 75,980 28,541 711 4,206 412 229,057
RZZE-1%
ZA=t-H 9,340 - 124,420 106,327 48,880 6,985 4,333 27 300,312
Note: The buildings situated on the leasehold land had been fully Wit REETHHAEETENE B

depreciated but still in use by the Group. The leasehold land is

situated in Hong Kong.

MEREBER - HELHEMR

FEZRHHEE

o
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_T-—R"F-H=1t—HLFE
17.Property, Plant and Equipment 17. 1% - BERZE &
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for FliEEYE BERKRE (EETE
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line BrON) 2 T E TR N Y F R E EER
basis at the following rates per annum: g
Leasehold land HE L Over the lease terms
AEHR
Buildings and factory buildings BFERIMmYE 4% or over the lease
term, if shorter
A% EHA -
mEREE
Plant and machinery iR 5 5% 1 Je 1 25 15%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment RE -RKEREZE 20 - 33"/5%
Moulds and tools HANTA 20 - 33'/5%
Motor vehicles A 20%
As at 31 March 2015, the Group has pledge leasehold R-E—FRAF=A=+—H &A%
land and buildings with a net book value of approximately ERz—RRTEERHB2AE L
HK$9,220,000 (2016: Nil) to secure general banking facilities MEFHEREEEN22BET (=
granted to the Group. —NE=A=+—H:#&)-
. =,
18. Prepaid Lease Payments 18. T HEMIE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land AEBZENEERBEREMLNRES
outside Hong Kong. LASNZ HHE Lo
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EERASZR 2 DT
Non-current assets ERBEE 24,833 26,394
Current assets mE) & E 704 716
25,537 27,110
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_T-—R"F-H=1t—HLFE
19. Club Debentures 19. BFffE S

20.

CARRYING VALUE BREE

At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2016 WA —-Z—PM4/MA—H
—E—RF=ZA=F+—8BK
—E—R&¥=ZHA=+—H

The club debentures with indefinite useful lives are tested for

impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that

they may be impaired. The directors of the Company are of the

opinion that no impairment loss was identified with reference to

market value.

Available-For-Sale Investments 20.
Available-for-sale investments comprise:

Unlisted investments (Level 3) FELEMRE (BE=/)

— Investment funds —REHS

— Debt securities — BB ES
Listed investments (Level 1) L& (F—H)

— Debt securities —BEBES
Analysed for reporting purposes as: TEERA® 2 DT
Non-current assets FmBEE
Current assets MENE E

Annual Report 2015/2016 —ZE—H

HK$'000
FE T

13,866

EHRNSMESRSFSERER

ALERPFRBERRESERE AR
AEZEREZEMHEER BRLER
TRBEE R

AHEERE
AfHfHERERR:

2016 2015

—B-XxE —T-RF

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FET T

11,356 8,840

3,538 6,340

14,894 15,180

4,675 -

19,569 15,180

16,031 13,563

3,538 1,617

19,569 15,180

E-B-—AFEH

= —=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

20. Available-For-Sale Investments

21.

22

(Continued)

The investments in unlisted investment funds and unlisted debt
securities are stated at fair value, which have been determined
by reference to prices provided by the counterparty financial
institution. Disclosures of the fair value measurement are set
out in note 6¢.

Financial Assets Designated at
FVTPL

Unlisted investment funds FELEMEES
These represent unlisted investment funds redeemable at the
directors’ discretion. As at 31 March 2016, the directors of the
Company intended to hold these investments at least in the
coming twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and therefore they are classified as non-current assets.

The above financial instruments are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Disclosures of the fair value
measurement are set out in note 6c¢.

.Inventories

Raw materials B R
Work in progress TE& i
Finished goods BUPK i
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HE_T—E=A=1t—HItEE

20. I HERE @)

21.

BRENFLMREES RIFLHES
BFRAFEAR AEYSREIER
HEBRELE - R ETERH FE6cH

E’go

ZREREATEITEZ
H%EE
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—HHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
3,495 3,635

EABREFAEEQNI FLTRER
- RZTE-—RFE=ZA=+—H AR
AEFAEREZEREEARSEH
EREFELRFET @A BWZEFER
ENHRERBEE-

Ei e BT A RS B RS HAERE IR
AT BB o A FE B R K E6cH

E’go

22. 78

2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FETT FET
28,106 41,799
16,503 22 247
29,980 39,678
74,589 103,724
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE-ZT—RF=ZA=1T—HILFE
O . f=v] =+
23.Trade Receivables and Bills 23. ERE SRR EWE
. . =+,
Receivable/Other Receivables B H th FE U BR =X
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR K 300,729 398,772
Bills receivable e W = B - 1,261
300,729 400,033
Other receivables (Note) o Ath JE AR B (B aE) 29,918 99,244
Total trade and other receivables U E 5 BR R R EoAth
FE W AR SR A EE 330,647 499,277
Note: As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s other receivables mainly Kiid: RZE—R"F=ZA=+—H &%
include value added tax recoverable of HK$19,577,000 (2015: ErEMEREREZBIE1,9578
HK$88,298,000), which will be repayable within one year. 7B (ZZE— R F :8,82088(T
BIT) Z AW BB ER R - 3R R —
FARYLE o
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables and bills ITRERKE ZERREKREENR
receivable by age, presented based on the invoice date which CHUABRERHAER ZRE DT
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates. AN B2 e FERERE -
2016 2015
—E—RE¥ —ET—hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 - 90 days 0 -90H 283,211 366,527
91 - 120 days 91 - 120H 17,518 30,380
Over 120 days HBiE120H - 3,126
300,729 400,033
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

23. BB Z RN B E

23. Trade Receivables and Bills

Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

The Group maintains defined credit period of up to 90 days.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. In addition, the Group reviews the repayment
history of receivables by each customer with reference to
the payment terms stated in contracts. In determining the
recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the
date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. In the
opinion of directors, the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired were of good credit quality based on good
repayment history at the end of the reporting period and no
impairment is necessary for these balances.

As at 31 March 2016, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregated
carrying amount of approximately HK$21,595,000 (2015:
HK$48,929,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

23. Trade Receivables and Bills
Receivable/Other Receivables
(Continued)

Age of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

Overdue by: @ HA
1 -90 days 1-90H
91 — 120 days 91 - 120H

The Group performed assessment on individual trade
receivable balance and recognised allowance on specific
balance when necessary. In the opinion of the directors, there
was no allowance for doubtful debts required as at the end of
both reporting periods.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade and other
receivables and bills receivable. The Group has not provided
for impairment loss as the directors assessed that these
balances will be recovered base on their settlement records.

e

PR mE S

HE_T—E=A=1t—HItEE

. RKEZ RN ERE

E/E LI&;E\EZFA (&)

EEMEY BRE 2 B E 5 FRKR

4EA
B -

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FET
21,551 48,725
44 204

21,595 48,929

AEBFEEERKEHRRER
YR BEISEERERREG -EF
RA - N ERS B AR AL EFIE
RERE -

AEEI ELE 5 K& H B W ER KK

ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ°§$gﬁw
RRCER R R % TR A R E - A

ﬂﬁ%?ﬁ% KAE R B R R R o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

24.Short-term Deposits/Bank Balances
and Cash

(@) Short-term deposits
Short-term deposits are deposit placed with bank or
financial institute for investment purpose. The short-term
deposits carry fixed interest rates with effective interest
rates ranging from 0.01% to 8% (2015: 0.01% to 4.5%)
per annum.

(b) Bank balances and cash

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0% to 0.3% (2015: 0% to 0.35%) per annum.

25. Trade Payables

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date.

0 - 90 days 0-90H
91 — 120 days 91 - 120H
Over 120 days HB®120H8
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24. WHIFR SBTHERE

w7

(@ BEHER

HHGERREERBET LS /K
BAREBW AESHBAEE
RyE=HE - F 2 LA E B H0.01%

8% (ZF —
4.5%) °

(b) RTEEFENRE
RITEFRTHHE

0.35% ) ©

25. B E SR

AF:0.01%ZE

R
il ES

BAI0E03% (ZE—HF:0

REZZEHEIIZBNESRRZ

R D ATAO T ¢

2016 2015

—E—XEF —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FE T

169,911 240,360

27,397 19,507

3,409 2,726

200,717 262,593




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %R & B R E ZMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_T—E=A=1t—HItEE
= =%
26.Secured Bank Loans 26. BIEHBITER
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—AhE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Secured bank loans, with carrying amount BEBRITER
repayable (Note): BEE ZIREE (Wit)
Within one year —F R 5,124 13,493
More than one year, but not exceeding ZHR—F BT BBEMRE
two years 5,124 5,124
More than two years, but not exceeding ZIRME - BTEBBAF
five years 15,372 15,372
More than five years HEFE 26,037 31,161
51,657 65,150
Carrying amount of bank loans that RITERBEERBEBKRZ
contain a repayment on demand clause BREE 5,548 12,948
57,205 78,098
Less: Amount due within one year shown BIERARBEEZ
under current liabilities —FHRNEXREHE (10,672) (26,441)
Amount due after one year —FRREBNERER 46,533 51,657

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreement.

The bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest at 1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) plus a range of 0.8% to 2.75% (2015: 1-month
HIBOR + 0.8% to 2.75%) per annum. The range of effective
interest rates on the Group’s borrowings are from 1.26% to
2.97% (2015: 1.04% to 2.99%) per annum.

Bz BIMERSELERERBEM
HZERAH-

WRITERAZONE2EE FEX
AEBRITRAZENE (—@A) N0.8%
2275% (ZZE—RF  BBRTAE
A (—EAB)M0.8%FE2.75%) - H
BEHFB1.26%E2.97% (—E—H
F:FEB1.04%%22.99% ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

26. Secured Bank Loans (continueaq)

As at 31 March 2016, bank loans of HK$57,205,000 (2015:
HK$78,098,000) is secured by the Group’s investment
properties with a fair value approximately HK$242,000,000
(Note 16). As at 31 March 2015, bank loans of
HK$51,657,000 (2016: HK$NIl) was secured by leasehold land
held under finance lease and building of the Group with net
book value of HK$9,220,000 (2016: HK$NIil).

27.Deferred Tax Liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

e

I E S

BE-_T—NEF=A=1+—HIFE

26.

27.

BEHRITER

R-ZE—XRNE=ZF=1+—H8" RT7EX
572085 & L (—Z T — R :7,809
BeffAm) EEREEMEURT
@%%%ﬂzm%%ﬁﬂﬁEQWF
ReR—_EBE—RHAF=ZA=+—H R
1TE X5, 165:%71%%75 (20164 : )
THEBNBREHEREANEE L
R AEFABREFE2EE T (ZF
—NEF o\ EER

A ()

EER IR B

TIRERFERZAFED THER
TEREHERGUREP 2EE):

At 1 April 2014 RZZT-—MFEA—H

Release upon payment of dividends A AR S PR 0 9%

(Credit) charge to profit or loss Rz (EI#) 1R

At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZZT—HF
EH:+—E&
“E-RFMA—H

(Credit) charge to profit or loss RiBE (E#) R

At 31 March 2016 RZE—REF
=R=+—H
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Withholding
tax on
distributable
Accelerated profit of
tax subsidiaries
depreciation in PRC Total
B EAR
A 2B ER 2
MERERE ENB wmeE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
T8 T TE7T
6,357 6,066 12,423
= (500) (500)
(25) 1,041 1,016
6,332 6,607 12,939
(738) 654 (84)
5,594 7,261 12,855




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

27.Deferred Tax Liabilities (continueq) 27. BEEFIBEEE &

The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets arising from
tax losses of HK$100,202,000 (2015: HK$93,114,000) due
to the unpredictability of future project streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$95,029,000 (2015: HK$83,064,000) that will expire in
2020 (2015: expiring in 2019). Other losses may be carried

forward indefinitely.

Under the new enterprise income tax law in the PRC and
implementation regulations issued by the State Council,
withholding tax at 10% or a lower treaty rate is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has been fully provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to

accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries.

28. Share Capital

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised:
At beginning and end of the year

Issued and fully paid
At beginning and end of the year

e MR E SN

HE_T—E=A=1t—HItEE

)

AEBUEBERAHBEBREENE
EHBEE REAEEBTAEIE
0B2F AL (ZE—HF:9,31184
FHET) 2 ARKRIEE R - BIEEATE
R IEEIENL9,50289F 8T (=&
— R :8,30684F B T) E5E - R

TECEFRHH(ZE—RAF BR T
T—NFERE) o B b1 AT e R A

fEHE -

RIBFFBEFEEMAEHER - b B
P BEES K—FFENF—H
—BRt BT ERBARMMSNFE
k2 2 RS - LA10% 8 M B sk K
MHEREBKR -ERTEKBLRR
AAMENEREEEMSHNRIERRAS
RiZBPBRRATDIEM -

28. IR A
2016 & 2015 2016 & 2015
—E-RER ZE—RER
= —
Number of
shares HK$'000
Rin#E FHET
% AT {H0.107 7T 2 & B A
JETE MR AN -
RE ) R F 485 600,000,000 60,000
B3I RBRRA
REY) S F4ER 335,432,520 33,543
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

29. Share Option Scheme 29. I IR FEET 2

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 8 August 2012 for the primary purpose
of providing incentives to directors of the Company and eligible
employees, the directors and employees of the Company
may, at the discretion of the directors, be granted options
(the “Options”) to subscribe for shares in the Company (the
“Shares”) at a price determined by its directors, but shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the date of the offer of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (i)
the nominal value of the Shares.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
and the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point
in time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
the date of its adoption. Options granted must be taken up
not later than 28 days after the date of grant. A consideration
of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an
option. An option is exercisable on the date when the offer for
the grant of options is made but shall end in any event not later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.

No options have been granted during the year under the
Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

30. Related Party Disclosures

(@) Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to the
related parties are as follows:

Immediate holding company EEZRAR
Allan Investment Company Limited TRIEEFR AT
Fellow subsidiaries [ 2 Fff B A 7]
Income Village Limited HEBRA A

Fair Pacific Limited BEFRATF
Director of the Company AFESE

Mr. Cheung Pui SRIE A&

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases with immediate holding
company and fellow subsidiaries which are included in
note 31 and fall due as follows:

Immediate holding company HEERAF
Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth year inclusive

Fellow subsidiaries
Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

E_FEERFRN

EZAMELQF
—FRA

E_FEERFN

e MR E SN

HiE — ke s Bl =arR[E IEEE

0. EERAEAIR G 2KE

(@ AEEENIKENEERAXTT
SIEREANTL:

2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET—HhHHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

900 900

204 204

984 984

- 75

RBEFEGERK  NEBEE
32 WNCIDSAEIES 1) PN
REmNEERE (EREEMTE
31) B RF KEENEE

HEAENR
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—F0F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FE T
900 900
- 900
900 1,800
1,188 1,188
1,968 204
3,156 1,392
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BHE_T—R"F-H=1t—HLFE
- AY —— 'EE
30. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 0. BEREALIRZIZEE
(%)
(@) Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to the @ AEEENKEMBEEAZTT
related parties are as follows: (Continued) WEBEAL: ()
Certain directors of the Company have controls in Allan BHEENEHIEER QA
Investment Company Limited, Income Village Limited REARATREEBRARAE
and Fair Pacific Limited. Mr. Cheung Pui is a director, THIE - RIBEERBADRZE
shareholder and key management personnel of the E RERFTEEEAB-
Company.
(o) The remuneration of key management personnel, being by RFAEXTEEEABZHE 8D
the directors of the Company, during the year was as EEWT:
follows:
2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET F&T
Short-term employee benefits B TR 13,947 13,883
Post employment benefits R RAE 712 712
14,659 14,595
The remuneration of directors is recommended by BExvMenEBEMNEINE
the remuneration committee having regard to the I MSBERER BFMEES
performance of individuals, market trends and conditions SRR EZ ki E MIEET
with a view to retain and motivate executives. BABBEREBEB T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B FE 3R & E /i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BHE_T-—RFZA=1+—HILFE
31.Operating Leases 3. EEHE
The Group as lessee AEBEERAEA
2016 2015
—E—XE —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHT FET
Minimum lease payments paid during AEEpEEHENHEMEL
the year under operating leases in SIRAE R H
respect of rented premises 2,103 2,179
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBEFRELERE  NEE 2 A
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- ZiEAEm ﬁﬁS'iHXEFﬁfoﬁfE
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: Zﬁqﬁ%ﬁﬂ
2016 2015
—E—XEF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —F K 2,104 2,103
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EEREN 1,979 1,132
4,083 3,235
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for rented eERENFELAYEREN 2 -
premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term ranging HEFHE—F=2=F(ZF—hF:
from one to three years (2015: one to three years) and rentals —FE=F)HRHBELRREERANS
are fixed throughout the lease period. BEEHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016
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31.Operating Leases (continued 3. EEHE o)

The Group as lessor AEEERABEA
FAYERS WA BSB0EIFE T
(ZT—RF49684FBT) HH
B ¥R P FIC A R R = E 4
(ZE—hF WF) -

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$5,601,000 (2015: HK$4,964,000). The property held has
committed tenants for the next three years (2015: two years).

N EFREAERRK  AEBEBF I
THARKRZEBEERTZLAH

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Within one year —F A 4,560 3,718
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERAFER 4,073 1,340
8,633 5,058
32. Capital Commitments 32. EAEKIE
2016 2015
AL —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BRL 2 EARNEE
provided in the consolidated financial BIARREGRE T EHREEN
statements in respect of: RIEPRE :
— acquisition of property, plant and —BEWE WEREE
equipment 838 2,900
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

33. Retirement Benefits Schemes

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong participates in both a
defined contribution scheme registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”) in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from employees
of 5% of their salaries. The employers will contribute based on
the monthly salaries of employees according to the following
schedule:

e MR E SN

HiE — ke s Bl =arR[E IEEE

33.

3B K18 R 5T &

BEEMBLAR2EMIATERMREE
AR B R ARG BB R IRD] ([RTR
SHEDKER_ZTTTFT AKX
MR SR B ME AT E RG] 2 R B R TR
it 8 ([BERE]) - ZFFEE
ERAKEEERDRATE AHEE
HEREAMEFRZBIESRSE -

2mAEEREIZEE  FARKAA
B Z5% B E M ARE AT EHIRATE
BAREEHFZHRE:

Rate of
Number of completed years of service contribution
52 X AR % & HA =
Not more than 5 years DPREAEF 5%
More than 5 years but not more than 10 years ZRAFETLZNI10F 7.5%
More than 10 years ZH+ 10%

The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
subsidiaries’ contributions and accrued returns after
participating in the ORSO Scheme for 10 years or more, or
at an increased scale of 30% to 90% after participating in
the ORSO Scheme from 3 to 9 years respectively. Where
an employee leaves the employment prior to becoming
fully entitled to the employer’s contributions, the excess
contributions are forfeited and the employer may utilise the
forfeited contributions to reduce its future contributions. At 31
March 2015 and 2016, the Group had no material unutilised
forfeited contributions in the ORSO Scheme which may be
used to reduce the Group’s future contributions.

S2mAEeFER T FEZRE A2
FEMBARSEREHRZHFBELA
HRAE - E2MFRBRIEIF &S
# Z B30%ZE0%(E = 2 5N A - s (&
BN RBERER 2 B0 R = KA R
A% B EFGE T2 W MEE R ER AT
RNz BERFNIR B IR RN 2 R - R =
E-RAR_T-RF=ZA=+—8"
REERA B AL U AT (EF0 R B
BEMETER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

33. RIRBERIFTEl =)

33. Retirement Benefits Schemes

(Continued)

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 65
and with at least 59 days of service under the employment in
Hong Kong. Contributions from employers and employees are
5% each of the employee’s relevant income. The maximum
relevant income for contribution purpose is HK$25,000 per
month from 1 April 2014 to 31 May 2014 and HK$30,000
per month from 1 June 2014. The employees are entitled
to the full benefit of the Group’s contributions and accrued
returns irrespective of their length of service with the Group
but the benefits are required by law to be presented until the
retirement age of 65.

The employees of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The contributions for the
scheme in the PRC are made based on a percentage of the
average salary as advised by the relevant authority in the PRC.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme. The subsidiaries operating in the PRC also
contributed to a local municipal government retirement scheme
for all qualified employees in the PRC. The employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at the rates specified in the rules.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
schemes in the PRC is to make the retired contributions under
the schemes. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 424 B FE 3R & E /i

For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_T-—R"F-HA=1t—HLFE

34.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 34. XA T ZEEMBE QT

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 RZE—-—REFRER_ZE—HAF=H
and 2015, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the =t+—H ARARIZE2ENBARFS
Company, are as follows: wm

Place of

incorporation Issued and fully paid share
Name of subsidiary or registration/operations  capital or registered capital Principal activities
HEARER AMRURBLEEY ERTRAECRAZEMER TEER
Allan Electric Mfg., Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each and  Investment holding
TREXEEFRAF &5 50,000 non-voting deferred shares of & &K

HK$10 each

1008 & I% E B 1078 7o 2 T 38 A% %50,000
BEREEI0B T EREEETREN

Allan International Limited * British Virgin Islands/ 55,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
Hong Kong 55,0000 SR EE1E L. TR REZR
ERRAHE/BE

Allan Mould Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong/PRC 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Manufacturing of plastic

SRTEZEERAF B/ 0 100 BREE BT EER injection moulds
EEERTERA

Allan Plastic Mfg., Limited Hong Kong 3,005 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property holding and trading

TREBBERAA G 3,005 G REBE1E T 2 L AR of household electrical

appliances

RENFERERFESS

Allan Toys Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 270,000 ordinary shares of HK$10 each  Inactive
ShRNARRERAAF it 270,000/ R EE10/8 T 2 &R EEXH
TRIENE (BN ARATF PRC* Registered capital of USD49,600,000 Manufacturing of household
H 1 & 749,600,000 75 electrical appliances and
plastic parts
EEFEESER
BRITH
HETE(EH)ARAA PRC? Registered capital of HK$75,000,000 Manufacturing of household
H 1 & 475,000,000 7T electrical appliances and
plastic parts
EEZEBHER
BREH
Artreal Manufactory Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Trading of household
BETEBRARA &8 R FREIE T2 LB electrical appliances
EHFAES®
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(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

WELREMH
Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited

FREXERR DA

Electrical Investments Limited

Ever Sources Investment Limited

SRREBRAT

Global Express (HK) Limited
Bk (BR)BRAR

Good Eagle Investment Limited

EEREARAF

Great Yield Limited
RIEBEBR QA

FeE TRM (B AR

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited

RREXREARAT]

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2016

34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

Place of

incorporation

or registration/operations
B E-EE £ 3

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
KBRS/ BR

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
0

PRC
G

PRC*
G

Hong Kong
&
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mEMBERE

S

BE—T"F=-A=1t—"BHLFE

(%)

Issued and fully paid share
capital or registered capital

ERTRARRAIZEMER
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

REREETETZEBK

1 ordinary share of USD1
IREBEIRT L@k

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100 B RE BT 2 & @R

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
REREEIET 2 LB

1 ordinary share of HK$1
IRAEVE T TR

1 ordinary share of HK$1
IRAETETZ SRR

Registered capital of HK$100,000,000
& 1fit & 100,000,000/ 7T

Registered capital of USD3,500,000
1 & 43,500,000 7T

100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each
100 FRAEIE L2 LB

M. AATZEEMBR A

Principal activities

FEEHR

Trading of household
electrical appliances
BERETS

Inactive

ERER

Inactive

TEXE

[nactive

LEXTG

Investment holding
REER

Trading of household
electrical appliances

REREER

Manufacturing of household
electrical appliances and
plastic parts

EERRERNEBTH

Manufacturing and trading
of household electrical
appliances and plastic
parts

HERREREERS
BREH

Trading of household
electrical appliances
BHFES®
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE_ZT—"F=A=1+—HItFE

34.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 34. XA T ZEEMBE QT
(Continued) (#&)

Place of
incorporation Issued and fully paid share
or registration/operations  capital or registered capital

Name of subsidiary Principal activities

WA R AE EMRIBEL EEHE ERTRERIREIZIMER TERH

New Prestige Investments Limited * Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Property investment
Bt 1REEIBTZ SRR REW%

Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic & Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each and Property holding

Metalwares Factory Limited B 54,000 non-voting deferred shares of #&#%

2 (BER)BBRAEBAERRDA HK$10 each
1008 &R E{E1078 T < & i@ AR 554,000
BREREE10ET 2 ERZEELRN
Progress Associates Limited * British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share of USD1 Investment in securities
Hong Kong 1RAEEIF T ERR BHEE
RS/ BR
Total Profits Limited British Virgin Islands/ 2 ordinary shares of USD1 each Investment holding
Hong Kong JREEIET 2 EBK REER
KBRS/ BR
Warran Electric Manufaoturing Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Inactive

EMEFHERRA it 100 B AR EE10/8 T 2 LR EEXHG

Well Sincere Investment Limited * Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investment holding
BHRERBRAA & REREEIETCEBR RERR

* Direct subsidiaries * BEEWBAA

# Wholly foreign-owned enterprises 3 2EIINEBERE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

o
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]
For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_T—E=A=1t—HItEE
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35. Financial Information of the 35. AR R M ER
Company
Assets and liabilities EEREE
2016 2015
—®-—AE —Z—AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property and equipment YL 1,603 2,075
Intangible asset BV EE 1 1
Interests in subsidiaries AP E=NGIE: 78,455 78,455
Deferred tax asset REFLIAE B 19 =
Club debenture SHES 11,395 11,395
91,473 91,926
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments = fth fE U BR 3% ~ 7 X R B FRIE 1,842 3,240
Amount due from subsidiaries Al NG = 573,273
Tax recoverable CIR: BT 2,618 1,689
Short-term deposits MHTFR 303,667 190,474
Bank balances and cash SRITERER S 51,646 13,172
359,773 781,848
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H b B A 5RIB R A R A 30,956 36,659
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN ENGIE ] 74,931 575,555
105,887 612,214
NET CURRENT ASSETS BERBEE 253,886 169,634
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERARBAEE
LIABILITIES 345,359 261,560
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Deferred tax liability EEFIEBE - 52
NET ASSETS BEZRE 345,359 261,508
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E
Share capital fi&% A 33,543 33,543
Reserves 15 311,816 227,965
TOTAL EQUITY ERsE 345,359 261,508
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 HE_T—RE=A=1t—HItEE
35. Financial Information of the 35. XA RAMBEFR @)
Company (continued)
Reserves i
Capital
Share  redemption Contributed Dividend Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve profits Total
[ieNE] ]
R4 & 8 51 0N R E & REER “E

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

At 1 April 2014 RZE—MF 109,884 793 28,230 26,835 101,411 267,153

Loss and total comprehensive AEEBRREZEX Y

expense for the year ek - - - - (3,967) (3,967
Dividend proposed for 2015 BRE_Z-—HFZKRE - - - 25,157 (25,157) =
Dividends recognised as distribution  HER1ED &k 2 IX 8. - - = (26,835) (8,386) (35,221)

At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R=ZE—AF=A=+—Hk
“Z-AFmA—H 109,884 793 28,230 25,157 63,901 227,965

Profit and total comprehensive AEERARZEKA

income for the year ek - - - - 114,040 114,040
Dividend proposed for 2016 REBEZS—AFZRE - - - 18,449 (18,449) =
Special dividend proposed for 2016 —Z— N ERRE 25

& - - - 93,921 (93,921) =
Dividends recognised as distribution  HER1ED Tk 2 I & - - - (25,157) (5,032) (30,189)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"E=ZA=1+—H 109,884 793 28,230 112,370 60,539 311,816
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Financial Summary

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the five years ended 31 March 2016.

Revenue

Profit before tax
Taxation

Profit for the year

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

3

BR % A A
A

AREE i

BERE
BEAE

BEFE

MBHE

TREBAKEH

et

RNE=ZRAR=+—

BERhEFEZEE BENBEHRE-

For the year ended 31 March
BE=-A=+-HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“B-XE TR Z—T-NFE =ZT—=F ZT-—C=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FHET
1,565,325 1,946,003 2,015,405 2,356,362 2,416,920
143,012 85,933 105,319 133,130 153,451
(7,356) (15,453) (21,862) (24,304) (26,314)
135,656 70,480 83,457 108,826 127,137

At 31 March

R=BA=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
“E-RfE —E-hHF —E-NF ZT—= —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT FET FHET FHET
1,694,186 1,643,831 1,726,787 1,755,339 1,780,232
520,352 568,376 679,621 748,811 838,494
1,173,834 1,075,455 1,047,166 1,006,528 941,738
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